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APPEARANCES

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

FRANK CASSI DY - CHAIR
JAY LEWS - VICE CHAIR
MORRI S HANAN

LIN O LEARY

BEN FARABEE

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:
JOHN TAYLOR, PLANNI NG DI RECTOR

DANI EL VI NCENT, PLANNER |
MAC MCQUI LLI N, TOMN ATTORNEY
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MR. CASSIDY: Al right. So we'l]l
get started. |'d like to call to order the
February 24, 2025 neeting of the Town of Ki awah
| sl and Board of Zoning Appeals. |'m Frank
Cassidy. I'mthe chair. |In addition to nyself
t he menbers hearing the cases today are Lin
O Leary, Mrris Hanan, Jay Lewi s and Ben Far abee.
Staff nenbers present here are Dan Vincent from
our planning staff, John Tayl or, our planning
di rector, and Mac McQuillan, our town attorney.
Qur case rulings fromthis and any BZA neeti ng
are avail able for public review and i nspection
during normal business hours at the town hall.

Since our neeting is being conducted
virtually via Zoom please be rem nded that in
order to obtain a clean and clear record for
persons listening live it's inportant that all
partici pants not speak over one another. |If
you'd |like to speak, please raise your hand, |'I|
recogni ze you, and you can cone to the m ke.
|'ve al so been asked to rem nd the BZA nenbers
that you should al so speak into the m kes when
you speak.

First on our agenda today is the

el ection of officers for 2025. |'d entertain a

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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nom nation for chair.
MR HANAN. |1'd like to renom nate
Frank Cassidy to continue as the chair.
MR. CASSIDY: |Is there a second?
MR LEWS: |'d second.
MR. CASSI DY: Any ot her
nom nati ons?
Any further discussion?
Al in favor please say aye.
(Al in favor.)
MR. CASSI DY: Thank you everybody.
Jay Lewis is our current vice chair. 1|'d

entertain a notion to nom nate Jay to conti nue.

M5. O LEARY. | nomnate Jay to
cont i nue.

MR. HANAN:.  Second.

MR. CASSI DY: Any further

di scussi on?

M5. O LEARY: Do you want nore
di scussi on, Jay?

MR LEWS:. No.

MR CASSIDY: Al in favor please
say aye.

(Al in favor.)

MR. CASSI DY: Congratul ations, Jay.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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By our rules of procedure the planning
director acts as board secretary. |'d entertain
a notion nom nating John Tayl or as secretary.

M5. O LEARY: | nom nate John
Tayl or as secretary.

MR. HANAN. 1'Il second it.

MR. CASSI DY: Any further
di scussi on?

Al in favor please say aye.

(Al in favor.)

MR. CASSI DY: Congratul ati ons,
John.

At this tine I'd like to explain to the
public the workings of the BZA. The Board of
Zoni ng Appeal s is a quasi-judicial body
established to interpret and grant relief from
the zoni ng ordi nance. The Board of Zoning
Appeal s has jurisdiction over three types of
cases, appeals, variances, which is what we're
goi ng to be doing today, and special exceptions.

Appeal s are heard regarding
adm ni strative actions or decisions by the zoning
adm ni strator and/or staff. Variances nay be
grant ed when strict application of the zoning

ordi nance woul d cause an unnecessary hardshi p.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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The board's actions nust be based on specific
standards as contained in SC Local Governnent
Pl anni ng Enabling Act of 1994 and the Town of
Ki awah | sl and Zoni ng Ordi nance. Speci al
exceptions allow the board to permt uses if
certain conditions as contained in the zoning
ordi nance are net. A sinple mgjority vote of the
guorum present is required to grant a variance or
to overturn the decision of the zoning
adm ni strator in an appeal or to grant a speci al
excepti on.

Because today's hearing is a public
fact-finding neeting, we are in conpliance with
t he Freedom of Information Act and SC Code
6-29-70. 15 days prior to the hearing an
announcenent was printed in the Post & Courier, a
sign was posted on or near the designated
property, and a notice was nmailed to the
applicant or representative and to residents
within 500 feet of the application and to parties
of interest. Persons, organi zations and the news
nedi a that have requested declaration of our
neeti ng have al so been notified. The Freedom of
| nf ormati on Act does not require notification of

anyone ot her than the applicant and the parties

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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of interest.

Qur purpose today is for interested
parties to be heard in order to assist the board
I n gathering evidence pertinent to each case. |If
t he nenbers of the BZA feel the need for further
information to clarify a case, the board has the
authority to subpoena witnesses. |In addition to
your testinony, our board has been presented
witten information submtted to the staff by the
applicant or their agent for each case. This
i nformation is now considered to be evidence and
Is entered into the permanent record of this
body. |It's assuned that it is conplete, true and
accurate. Also we've been presented data
assenbl ed by the staff for the purpose of
clarifying the | ocation and effect on surroundi ng
property.

Qur board is enpowered to approve,
approve with conditions, or to deny your request.
In granting a variance the board of zoning
appeal s may attach such conditions regarding the
| ocation, character or other features of the
proposed building structure or use as the board
may consi der advisable to protect established

property values in the surrounding area or to

Clark Bolen, Inc.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kiawah Island BZA Meeting

pronote the public health, safety and general
welfare. W are also authorized to defer a case
shoul d there be a need to obtain additional
I nformati on.

| f an applicant's request is approved
for a special exenption, a variance or an appeal
of a decision by the zoning adm nistrator, they
must go to if the Town of Kiawah |Island to apply
for permts. Variances and speci al exceptions
granted by the BZA are valid for 12 nonths after
this neeting. However, if an applicant's request
I s di sapproved and they wi sh to appeal the
deci sion of this board concerning their case,
appeal s nust be addressed to the Circuit Court.
SC Code 6-29-820 states that the appeal nust be
filed by the applicant within 30 days after the
deci sion of the board is mailed to them Failure
to file an appeal within the tine limt deprives

the court of jurisdiction to hear the matter.

For each case staff wl | present
I nformation, the applicant will present their
case, and wll hear fromany others who wish to

speak. Be rem nded to direct your coments to
t he board, not the applicant or other speakers.

To expedite the process of people

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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speaking, |I'd ask all persons who intend to speak
t oday about either case to stand, and Mac w ||
adm ni ster the oath.

MR, MCQUI LLAN: If you could stand
and rai se your right hand and repeat after ne.

(Wtnesses placed under oath.)

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, Mac and
t hank you everyone.

| shall now call case BZA-25-000002 at
219 H gh Dunes Lane. First we'll hear from Dan
fromthe staff, then the applicant, then others.
Al |l speakers should cone to the podium state
your nanme and current address for the record,
before presenting testinony. |'Ill limt coments
by the public to three mnutes, and the applicant
wi Il have a chance to rebuttal if necessary.
Dan, it's all yours.

MR. VI NCENT: Thank you, M.
Chai rman, nmenbers of the BZA. Qur first case
today, this Case No. BZA 25-000002 the applicant
and property owner, JDF |Investnent Services, LLC,
bei ng represented by Heat her W1 son of Heather A
Wl son Architects, is requesting a variance for
the reduction of the required 15-foot side

set back for approxinmately 488 square feet for a

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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proposed new single famly hone | ocated at 219
Hi gh Dunes Lane. The TMS nunber is
265- 16- 00-236. The subject property is |ocated
in the R 2 Residential Zoning District within the
Ccean Par ks nei ghborhood. The subject property
Is currently undevel oped.

The ot is approximately 13,520 square
feet in size in which approximately 11,919 square
feet is highlands and the remaining 1,601 square
feet consists of marshlands. Subject property
sits adjacent to marsh to the south.

The Town of Kiawah Island's Land Use
Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Ordi nhance requires a front
set back of 25 feet, 15-foot side setbacks and a
25-f oot rear setback. Subject property has a
maxi mum | ot coverage, allowable | ot coverage, of
40 percent. The proposed | ot coverage is 39.55
per cent.

The South Carolina Departnent of
Envi ronnent al Servi ces Bureau of Coast al
Managenent, or BCM for short, certifies the
critical areas present on the property as
I ndi cated by a survey dated August 31st, 2020.
Furthernore, a 15-foot stormmater buffer is

| ocated on the 25-foot rear SCDES BCM criti cal

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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I i ne.

Here is a zoning map of the subject
property (indicating).

We'll let the record show we have
recei ved two public comments. You can see on the
map shown on your screen where exactly those
coments have cone from Both are in opposition.

Here is a Charleston County G S aeri al
view of the subject property (indicating).

The subject property is |ocated in Ccean
Par k nei ghbor hood whi ch was previously governed
by the 2013 Anended and Rest ated Devel opnent
Agreenent, ARDA for short, by and between Ki awah
Resort Associates and the Town of Kiawah. Under
the ARDA the subject property was designed as
part of the undevel oped | ands identified in
Exhi bit 1.3, undevel oped | and parcel. Ccean
Par k, which was parcel 43, was wthin the R 2
Resi denti al category, subject to standards
outlined in Exhibit 13.3, Table of General Lot
St andards, inside the ARDA. The standards of
Exhi bit 13.3, Table of General Lot Standards for
| ot sizes between 8,000 square feet and 11, 999
square feet, included a 25-foot front setback, a

10-f oot side setback and a 25-foot rear setback.

Clark Bolen, Inc.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 12

Fol l owi ng the expiration of the ARDA on
Decenber 4th, 2023, the setback requirenents for
t he subject property at 219 H gh Dunes Lane as
prescri bed by the Land Use Pl anni ng and Zoni ng
Ordi nance, Article Il, Zoning, Division 2, Zoning
Map/ Di stricts, Section 12-66, R-2 Residenti al
District, and Table 2C, Lot Standards for R-2
I nclude a 25-foot front setback, a 15-foot side
set back, and a 25-foot rear setback.

Per Charl eston County records the hone
was acquired by JDF I nvestnent Services, LLC, on
April 28th, 2023, prior to the expirations of the
ARDA.

The applicant has submtted to the
Ki awah |sland Architectural Review Board for
interimfinal review and have been granted
approval on January 17th, 2025 stating, "The
desi gn of your hone is approved to continue to
the permt submttal pending an approved interim
submttal. As you nove forward, please address
the follow ng conments and conditions in keeping
with the guidelines: The ARB supports and
appreci ates the unique site devel opnent and
architectural design which allows the

preservation of the 35-inch |ive oak root zone

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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and full canopy despite its substantial inpact on
t he buil dable area."

A site visit was conducted on February
7th, 2025. At the time the follow ng
determ nations were nmade. Here are a fewsite
pictures of the site: Front of the property,
adj acent properties (indicating). The adjacent
property to the East the subject property is
devel oped, which is 217 H gh Dunes; and the
adj acent property to the west of the subject
property is currently undevel oped.

Let the record show that we have
recei ved a public comment for that undevel oped
parcel at 221 H gh Dunes, which is west of the
subj ect property.

More site pictures (indicating).

The proposed plans include a new single
famly honme. There is a 35-inch grand |live oak
tree located on the east side of the property
within the buildable area. The proposed single
famly hone encroaches into the required 15-f oot
east side setback by approximately 4 feet, 5
I nches as per this plan. The total encroachnent
into the east side setback is approximtely 151

square feet. Additionally, portions of the

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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proposed single-famly honme encroach into the
15-f oot west side setback by approximately 6
feet, 5 inches at its furthest point. Total
encroachnments on the west side setback is
approxi mately 337 square feet, for a total
encroachnent of approximtely 488 square feet.

Here's a better representation of the
area outside the setbacks, colored in red; here's
sone proposed renderings provided by the
applicant; and then a proposed | andscape pl an
(i ndi cating).

The BZA may grant a variance only if
exceptional circunstances exist and where
practical difficulty or unnecessary hardships is
so substantial, serious or conpelling that
rel axation of the general restrictions ought be
gr ant ed.

"1l start with the criteria. Criteria
A There are extraordinary and excepti onal
conditions pertaining to the particul ar piece of
property.

There may be extraordi nary and
exceptional conditions on this property. The
35-inch grand live oak tree and root zone

significantly encroach into the buil dabl e area.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"There is a grand |ive oak on the center of the
lot. The tree inpacts the buildable area with
the root zone protection as well as limts the
hei ght of the adjacent roof lines. This
necessitates a design conprised of nostly
single-story elenents which increases the
footprint and need for side setback relief.”

Criteria B: These conditions do not
generally apply to other properties in the
vicinity.

These conditions may be unique to the
subj ect property and may not generally apply to
ot her properties in the vicinity. The property
Is located in the R 2 Residential Zoning
District. Adjacent properties along H gh Dunes
Lane are also located in the R 2 Residenti al
Zoning District. The ot sits adjacent to the
marsh to the south. There is an open space area
north of the subject property located in the
Par ks and Recreation Zoning District. Existing
structures in the vicinity may have simlar
encroachnments based on current setback standards.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:

"The nei ghboring hones were all built to the

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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gui deli nes of the ARDA zoning, as this | ot was

I ntended to be. The original zoning of this | ot
al l owed for the 10-foot side yard setbacks and
greater |atitude of tree protection.”

Criteria C. Because of these conditions
the application of this ordi nance to the
particul ar piece of property would effectively
prohi bit or unreasonably restrict the utilization
of the property.

The application of this ordi nance to the
subj ect property may not prohibit or unreasonably
restrict the utilization of the property.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The application of the current ordi nance would
unreasonably restrict the devel opnent of this
property. The current ordinance restriction, in
concert with the Iinb and root pattern of the
grand live oak, would Iimt the use of the
property, especially as conpared to all adjacent
and surroundi ng properties.”

Criteria D The authorization of the
variance wll not be of substantial detrinent to
adj acent properties or the public good, and the
character of the zoning district will not be

harnmed by the granting of this variance.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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The aut horization of this variance nay
not be of substantial detrinent to the adjacent
properties for the public good.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The variance would allow the property to be in
keeping with the design and intent of the marsh
wal k zoning. This is one of the fewlots
remai ning, and it is in the best interests of the
mar sh wal k nei ghborhood to be devel oped to the
sane standards as the surroundi ng properties.”

Criteria E© The Board of Zoni ng Appeal s
shall not grant a variance the effect of which
woul d be to allow the establishnent of a use not
otherwi se permtted in a zoning district, to
extend physically a nonconform ng use of |and, or
to change the zoning district boundaries shown on
the official zoning nmap.

G anting of this variance woul d not
all ow the establishnent of a use not otherw se
permtted in the zoning district, extend
physi cally a nonconform ng use of |and or change
the zoning district boundaries.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The property is zoned and i ntended for use as a

single-fam |y hone and has been desi gned as such.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Furthernore, the hone design is conpliant with
all other aspects of the ordinance.”

Criteria F:. The fact that property may
be utilized nore profitably should a vari ance be
granted may not be considered grounds for a
vari ance.

The BZA may not consider profitability
when considering this variance request.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"There woul d be no increase in value to the
property as a direct result of this variance.
The hone is simlar in size and caliber of all
t he adj acent properties.”

Criteria G The need for this variance
shall not be the result of the applicant's own
actions.

The need for the variance may be the
result of the applicant's own actions. The
property was acquired prior to the expiration of
the 2013 ARDA in Decenber of 2023.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The vari ance request is in advance of any
physi cal inprovenent and not the result of
actions taken."

Criteria H Ganting this variance w |

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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not be contrary to the public or nei ghborhood
interest nor will not adversely affect other
properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with
the harnony, spirit, intent and purposes of these
regul ati ons.

Granting of this variance may not be
contrary to the public or neighborhood i nterest,
may not adversely affect other property in the
vicinity nor interfere with the harnony, spirit,

I ntent or purposes of these regul ati ons.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The variance would allow for a design that is
entirely in keeping with the spirit and intent of
t he regul ati ons under which the nei ghborhood was
devel oped. Furthernore, sustaining and
nouri shing the grand oak is for the benefit of
the greater good."

And Criteria |I: Ganting of the
vari ance does not substantially conflict with the
conpr ehensi ve plan or the purposes of this
or di nance.

Granting of this variance may not
substantially conflict with the conprehensive
pl an or the purposes of this ordi nance. The Town

of Kiawah |sland' s Conprehensive Pl an, Housi ng

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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El emrent Goal |, Inplenentation Strategy A states,
"Provide nechanisns to permt flexibility and

I nnovation in residential project design to
pronote | and use efficiency and environnent al
protection.”

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The variance allows for a design that is in
concert with the conprehensive plan and the
design for this area of Kiawah, Marsh Wl k. "

The Board of Zoning Appeal s may approve,
approve with conditions, or deny Case No. BZA
25-000002. Again, this is a variance request for
the reduction of the required 15-foot side
set back by approxi mately 488 square feet for a
new single famly honme. Should the Board of
Zoni ng Appeal s consi der approval of this variance
request, planning staff requests the follow ng
conditions for approval, and that is the
applicant shall revise all plans and exhibits
submtted to Town to reflect the new 15-foot side
set back. This concludes staff's review

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, Dan.
Questions fromthe Board for Dan?

MR LEWS:. | have one. Dan, when
you tal k about Criteria G you say that they

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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shall not be the result of the applicant's own
actions. Your response is that it mght be as a
result of their actions. Can you go a little bit
deeper on that?

MR. VINCENT: Sure. So staff
consi dered, know ng that the ARDA was expiring in
2023, the purchaser of the property knew the
expiration, or the staff assuned that they knew
the expiration and therefore knew that the
set backs were being adjusted in Decenber of 2023.

MR LEWS: Ckay.

MR, CASSI DY: Qher questions for

MR. FARABEE. Yes. They weren't
gr andf at hered, were they?

MR. VI NCENT: No property was
gr andf at hered unl ess a zoning permt was given
prior to that expiration. There was no permt,
no zoning permt issued for this property before
t hat .

MR LEWS: So it expired and
roll ed back to the other setbacks we have.

MR, VI NCENT: Correct.

MR. FARABEE. | have a question for

Iltem F where it says that there will be no

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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I ncrease in value of the property as a direct
result of the variance. | know those aren't your
wor ds, but you put themin your wite-up, and it
woul d seemto ne that there is an increase in
value if they've got a bigger house sitting on
that property if we grant the variance, so |
guess it is going to increase the val ue.

MR VINCENT: Staff saw that nost
houses in the nei ghborhood are of simlar size,
and so based on that, based on the plans that
t hey drew up when they bought the house, we
considered profitability was not a consideration.

MR. FARABEE. You're saying the
pl an was drawn up when?

MR. VI NCENT: We would assune prior
to that expiration of the devel opnent agreenent.

MR. FARABEE: But there's no
permts or anything issued, were there?

MR VI NCENT: Correct.

MR. CASSI DY: Dan, sonewhere in
here it says that at its furthest point the
i ncursion is 6 plus feet. That neans, | think,
It goes beyond even the 10-foot, correct?

MR. VINCENT: That's correct. So
prior to that ARDA expiration they were at

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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10-feet setbacks, and after that expiration it's
at 15, so you're correct, that 16 -- that 6 foot
IS even nore than that 5-foot change.

MR. HANAN. So they didn't neet the
requi renents prior to the change.

MR. VINCENT: Correct. They would
have to get a variance -- they would have to seek
a variance anyway.

M5. O LEARY: And then the other
guestion is on B it says, these conditions do not
generally apply to other properties in the
vicinity, and we're tal king about the large tree;
or the one above it, extraordi nary exceptional
conditions pertaining to this particul ar piece of
property. There's a ton of properties out there
with grand oaks that people had to work within
the variances; is that correct?

MR VINCENT: 1'Il let the
applicant tal k about that if they so choose, but
staff noticed the big tree and not a | ot of
properties on staff's site visit had a | ot of
trees in the vicinity.

M5. O LEARY: Ckay.

MR. CASSI DY: Anything el se for

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Ckay. Thank you, Dan. Who's speaking

for the applicant?

M5. WLSON:. Hi. [|'m Heather
Wlson. I|I'mhere for the applicant. So to
address a couple -- I'll just start ny thoughts,

and then | can address a few points or questions.
The real issue is the tree, which is central to
the lot. Wen we were | ooking at designs early
on and were staking them we thought that the
house coul d work under the canopy, but in | ooking
at the stake on site that has a great deal of

t opography as well as this grand oak tree, it
becane clear that we were going to have to renove

too many |inbs, so we went to --

| don't knowif we can -- can we change
what's -- if we can | ook at the site plan that
shows the actual linb survey that -- yes, that

one with the red. You can see we have the actual
| i mbs, the height of the linbs, and that's from
sea level; so those |ook Iike 20, but when the
grade is at 10, they're quite low. So the issue
becane that fromthe whole center of the lot, the
center third of the buildable lot, can only be
one story.

And so |looking at different ways to
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approach this froma design perspective, we
actually decided to keep the whole rear of the
mar sh side of the property one story so -- in
order to avoid having two sets of stairs, |ike
you have to go down to one story and then pop
back up to two stories, and the front of the
house is the only two-story piece. So that's
really what drove the sort of expansion of the
footprint and how nuch is one story.

The buil dable or the all owabl e size of
the house is not |larger than anything el se out
there. It would be -- it's just that it's spread
out nostly on one story. There are three snall
guest bedroons on the second floor. So that's
really the driver for this.

| think that one thing else | would |ike
to talk about with regard to trees is in the
front left corner there's another large live oak
that i s bl ocking access under the house; and then
to the right, as you |look at the front of the
house, is the transforner as well as a grove of
smaller trees that we're trying to preserve. And
what that neans is that the only place to
accommodat e parking is underneath that snal

porch in the central section of the house, so
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that's the only place that cars can get in and
under the house for parking. So that's another
sort of nuance to the tree protection that's
happening with this -- with the programm ng of
this property.

Wth regards to the nonconpliance beyond
the 10-feet, it's only the two chi mmeys which
woul d easily be noved within the 10-foot setback.
The real issue is the size of the house that is
across -- you know, across the 10, between the 10
and 15.

| think that in terns of the greater
good, it really is actually nice that the first
story with the one-story elenents go all the way
to the path along the marsh. There's so nmany
tall houses along there as you wal k that path.
Most of themare two stories on the back, and
this is one story, which | think is a benefit
to -- a net benefit to the public and to the
path, in addition to accommobdati ng the canopy of
that tree.

You see so many trees that, while the
houses protect the root zone, they don't protect
t he canopi es, and so these canopi es are destroyed

in order to accommbdate the vertical nature of a
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| ot of hones out there; and we went to a | ot of
effort and thought to really protect all of those
significant |inbs that conme across the mddle
third of the property.
| think that is it, other than, in

response, |'m happy to open questions, but |
really don't believe this is any effort to expand
the size or value of the house. It really is
just in accommodati ng the natural environnent and
site with the topography and the true form and
natural formof the tree.

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you,
Ms. W son.

Questions for Ms. WIson?

MR LEWS:. So the way, if I'm
| ooki ng at the proposed site plan, west is at the
top and east is at the bottonf

M5. WLSON: Sort of, yes. |It's
north -- or southwest is at the top.

MR LEWS: Ckay.

M5. WLSON: It's not quite.

MR FARABEE: D d the ARB tell you
you couldn't cut down any of those trees?

M5. WLSON. Maybe -- Jenn's here.

W -- | don't renenber if that directive cane

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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fromyou or -- yes? Ckay. Yes.

MR. FARABEE. Who else would it
cone fromif it didn't cone fromthe ARB?

M5. WLSON. Well, | nean, the
effort to preserve it is also a choice, and we
were trying to do the right thing for the |ot.

MR. FARABEE: So what efforts did
you do to downsize it so you wouldn't encroach on
the trees as well as -- | understand the one in

the mddle there, but also keep it within the

set backs.

M5. WLSON. Well, because the --
from-- the first small L shape is the only
two-story piece of the plan, so the reason -- the

downsi ze is to not have any heated space above
the m ddle and rear section of the house so that
t he canopy could continue to expand, not have to
cut any of the -- these are all |eader |inbs that
we surveyed, so the canopy expands far beyond
that, but those are the significant and inportant
linbs that are in the center of the property. So
it's really about bringing down the ridge height
at the rear.

MR. FARABEE: | don't understand
how maki ng it bigger hel ps you there.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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M5. WLSON. Well, if you just --
nost of the houses there and what we're all owed
to build is, you know, 38 to 4,200 square feet,
and so if you can't put it on the second fl oor,
we're doing it nostly on the first floor. W
haven't made the house bigger. W've just nade
It nore one story.

MR. FARABEE: There's a lot of lots
this house will fit, and you're saying you' ve got
a lot that this house won't fit on.

M5. WLSON:. It would fit on nost
lots in Marsh Walk, is that what you nean, | ust
wi thout that tree. |If that tree wasn't there, we
coul d conpress the side to side.

MR. FARABEE: |If the sun wasn't
there, it would be cloudy all day too. |'mjust
sayi ng, though, ny question is what efforts have
you nmade to make the house fit the conditions of
the | ot.

M5. WLSON. Well, | guess in ny
opi ni on the shape of the footprint is fitting the
conditions of the lot, which is why |'mhere to
ask for relief fromthe setback in order to do
t hi s approach.

MR. CASSI DY: To ask Ben's question
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anot her way, | understand you can't get to 39.55
percent | ot coverage w thout this variance, but
you could get to 35 percent or so by | opping off
t hose col ored portions.

M5. WLSON. Well, the | ot coverage
I's one calculation, but it would al so render --
wi thout this additional setback, it would render
a house smaller than nost in the area.

M5. O LEARY: Is this your first
rendition of this that you guys have done for the
homeowner or this property, the first rendition
desi gn?

M5. WLSON: No, second.

M5. O LEARY: This is the second?
Because | guess ny question is, they cane and
t hey bought the property. They knew the tree was
there. They knew there were Iimtations. But
yet, here we are |ooking for a variance of a
house that doesn't really fit on the |ot.

MR. HANAN. And it didn't even neet
the requirenents prior to the changes that were
made to the ordi nance.

M. WLSON. Well, with the
exception of the chimey, which I said | can

retract that request with -- it did -- it is
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conpliant with the rest of the neighborhood aside
fromchi mey. Many of the houses are to 8 foot
set back and 10, between 8 and 10, and this is one
of the last few that has not been devel oped, so
it's -- it would be held to an entirely different

standard from you know, 95 percent of the lots

out there.

MR. LEWS: But the standards have
changed.

M5. WLSON:. Correct. | know, |'m
just. ..

MR, CASSI DY: Qher questions for
Ms. W Ison?

Ckay. Thank you, Ms. W/ son.

"Il ask if there are any nenbers of the
public who would like to speak to this?

Yes, sir.

MR, FOLDS: Thanks for having ne.
|'mJimFolds. [|'mthe owner of 219 H gh Dunes
Lane and just wanted to express, there's been
a -- seens to be a tone that we're trying to
bui |l d an unreasonably | arge house. W were
surprised, we've all been surprised -- not all of
us, but a lot of folks were surprised, after the

bui l ding permt application, that the -- we
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| earned of the 15-foot setback. When we
purchased this property, all the marketing
material, all the expectations, in fact, there
was a pre-approved plan on this lot within the
footprint that we're building show ng 10 feet.

So the assunption offered was that naybe
we knew about this and we're trying to skirt it.
Just wanted to offer, that's not the case. W've
| earned, as we've gone through quite a bit of
tinme, spent quite a bit of noney and effort to
try to cone up with a plan that works with this
big tree and the | ot and consistent with
everything else there -- out there, and that's
been our desire.

So | think that to the question around
the increasing the profitability or sone sort of
gain or benefit should this be allowed, | would
offer a corollary. |If it's not, there's a
substanti al devalue. Take 10 feet out of the
width of this plan and retain the tree and then
try to work around that, | think that's a -- you
know, given the cost and the effort out there,
| m not sure how viable it, frankly, would be.

So | just wanted to offer a perspective

of the owner and happy to answer any questions
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around that but wanted to -- given sone
assunpti ons and suggestions, just wanted to
clarify where that cones from

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you.

O her comments from nenbers of the

public?
Yes, ma' am
M5. HAYES: Thank you. [I'm
Jenni fer Hayes. |'mhere on behalf of the
architectural review board. |[|'ve been invol ved

in reviewi ng the plans and, you know, started
with the original site analysis with Heather and
her design teamtwo -- two plus years ago, and
|"'m here to speak in support of the variance
request for 219 Hi gh Dunes. The ARB did approve
t he proposed variances during the review process
for this home, and we believe there are
extraordi nary circunstances that support the
variance requests.

The first item | think, for you to
consider is that the plan is in keeping with
ot her nei ghbor hood hones and devel opnents. The
vari ance request woul d not be perceivable to
ot hers, since all of the honmes al ong the street

have been devel oped in a simlar manner.
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As part of that and to support the
reasoni ng and to answer the question about
potential increase in value, there is -- there is
not, | don't believe, an increase in value if
t hese vari ances were approved. The house is not
| arger than others within the nei ghborhood. It
Is sinply, you know, shortened and a little bit
nore spread out, all in support of a unique site
devel opnent for this property, which is exactly
the thing that nmakes Ki awah uni que and that the
architectural review board | ooks for with
desi gns.

And then that brings ne to the second
and nost inportant consideration, and that is
Wi th preservation of the 35-inch Iive oak. The
tree is located in such a place within the
central area of the buildable area and it's
canopy takes up such a | ot of space that it is
very difficult to design around; and while there
are a nunber of properties wth grand |ive oaks
I n OCcean Park, nost of themare not of this size.
Most of them are around 25,000 or greater, and
sone nuch greater, square feet. This one is
under 12,000 square feet, so there is nowhere

else for it to go.
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The proposed house has been desi gned
around the tree, preserving not only what we
soneti nes see, which is the trunk and where it's
| ocat ed, but al so the branching of that tree and
the root zone, which really ensures that the tree
will be an asset to the lot and to the
nei ghbor hood for years to cone.

Havi ng been to the site nunerous tines,
you know, | would just put in a final plug that
the tree really is grand in all senses of the
word, and | woul d hope that you woul d support the
vari ance request as proposed. Thank you.

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, nma'am

O her comments?

Ckay. Ms. WIlson, is there anything you
want to add.

M5. WLSON: No, sir.

MR LEWS: So we had two letters
opposed but those fol ks could not nmake the
neeti ng?

MR. CASSI DY: W actually have
three letters opposing, | believe, including the
one that cane in this norning.

M5. O LEARY: That's for 129.

That's the other one. There's only two.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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MR. CASSI DY: That's the other one?
Sorry. Two |letters opposing.

MR. LEWS:. But, Dan, they couldn't
be here today?

MR. VINCENT: | don't believe so,
hm mm

MR LEWS: kay.

MR. CASSIDY: Al right. Wth that
"Il entertain any notions that any nenber of the
board woul d |i ke to nake.

M5. O LEARY: | neke a notion to
deny the vari ance.

MR. HANAN. 1'Il second it.

MR. CASSI DY: There's been a notion
to deny the variance request and a second. Any
further discussion?

MR FARABEE: 1'd just like to
comment that | understand the desire to save the
tree, and on ny lot we did exactly the sane
thing; but also we had to keep within the
restrictions that we had incurred there, and we
deci ded, okay, we'll just shape the house to fit
the lot, and we did that. And | think -- | think
that's the natural thing to do, as opposed to

keep saying, we're going to nake a bi gger house

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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on a smaller lot. And | just think that the
tree's going to survive eventually, no matter
what we do; and so | think I'"'mgoing to -- |I'm
going to reject as well.

MR. CASSI DY: Any further
di scussi on?

Al right. W'Il take a vote then.

Ben -- a vote yes is a vote to deny the vari ance
request.

MR. FARABEE: | vote a yes to deny
it.

MR, CASSI DY: Yes. Jay?

MR LEWS: Yes.

MR. CASSI DY: Morris?

MR. HANAN: Yes.

MR. CASSI DY: Lin?

M5. O LEARY: Yes. But |I've been

asked to just nmake sure that I'msaying | want to
deny it for Section G and Section A Those are
the reasons that | had asked for it to be denied,
so yes, deni ed.
MR. CASSI DY: Good clarification.

Thank you, Lin.

Thank you, Daniel.

And Frank, yes.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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So it's unani nous, we're going to deny
this request for the application based on
Criteria Aand G primarily because the applicant
has failed to denonstrate that there are
sufficiently extraordinary circunstances to
warrant this grant. So thank you.

And we'll proceed now to the next
request, which is case BZA 25-000003 at 129 Bl ue
Her on Pond Road.

Ckay, Dan, you're up.

MR. VI NCENT: Thanks, Frank. Qur

next and final case being presented today is Case

No. BZA 25-000003, |ocated at 129 Bl ue Heron Pond

Road. The applicant and property owner, GSB
Hol di ngs, LLC, being represented by Leo Lorenzo
of Canens Architectural Goup, is requesting a
variance for the reduction of the required
20-foot side setback and required 20-foot rear
critical area line setback for approxinmately 208
square feet for a proposed new single-famly
honme. The TMS for the subject property is
265- 02- 00-085. The subject property is |ocated
within the R-1 residential zoning district. The
subj ect property is currently undevel oped.

The | ot size is approxinmately 18,178

Clark Bolen, Inc.

38



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kiawah Island BZA Meeting

square feet in size. 15,025 square feet consists
of hi ghl ands, and the renmai ning 3,153 square feet
consi sts of marshlands. The Town of Ki awah
| sl and' s Land Use Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Ordi nance
requires a front setback of 30 feet, 20-foot side
set backs and a 20-foot rear setback along the
Sout h Carolina Departnent of Environnental
Servi ces Bureau of Coastal Managenent criti cal
area |line setback, or SCDES BCM for short.

The subject property has a maxi nrum
al | owabl e | ot coverage of 33 percent. The
proposed | ot coverage is approximately 33.99
percent. The proposed | ot coverage includes
approxi mately 4,957 square feet or 32.99 percent
of inpervious materials and approxi mately 162
square feet or 1 percent of pervious walks. In
accordance with Section 12-63 of the Land Use
Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Ordi nance of the Town of
Ki awah | sl and, the subject property has an
al | owabl e i ncrease as a percentage of the maxi num
| ot coverage of up to 20 percent for qualifying
I tens such as pervious wal ks and patios. An
SCDES BCM critical line is also present on the
property as indicated by a survey certified by

the SCDES BCM | i ne dated August 31st, 2020.
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Furthernore, a 15-foot stormnater buffer is
| ocated fromthe 25-foot rear SCDES BCM criti cal
| i ne set back.

Per Charl eston County records, the hone
was recently acquired by GSB Hol di ngs, LLC, on
January 13th, 2025.

Here is a zoning aerial view of the
subj ect property (indicating).

Here is a Charleston County G S aeri al
vi ew (i ndicating).

Let the record show that we have
received three public coments for this variance
request. Here are the locations of where the
| etters have cone from (indicating). W have
received two |letters from 146 Bl ue Heron Pond
Road, which was actually outside the 500-f oot
radi us of notifications, as well as one coment
that we received this norning at 121 Bl ue Heron
Pond Road.

A site visit was conducted on February
7th, 2025, and staff has taken a few pictures.
On this picture to the left on the slide shown,
this is the leisure trail |ocated west of the
subj ect property (indicating).

The proposed plans include a new

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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single-famly hone. The proposed single-famly
resi dence encroaches into the 20-foot side

set back by approximately 4 feet. That is the
area to the left on this slide here in the black
bubbl e (i ndicating).

The total encroachnent into the side
setback is approximately 206 square feet.
Additionally, a small portion of the proposed
pool encroaches into the required rear SCDES BCM
critical line 20-foot setback by approximately 1
foot, 1 inch, for a total encroachnent of 2
square feet, and that is that bubble to the north
of the property (indicating).

The applicant has submtted to the
Ki awah |sland Architectural Review Board for a
vari ance review and for final review and was
granted approval, respectively, on January 17th,
2025 and January 25th, 2025.

We'll nove on to the variance criteria.
Criteria A There are extraordinary and
exceptional conditions pertaining to the
particul ar piece of property.

There may be extraordi nary and
exceptional conditions on this property. The

subj ect property is uniquely pie-shaped and sits
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adj acent to critical area to the north and
nort heast.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The rear and side critical line with the 20-f oot
set back extends substantially into the property
maki ng the design of a hone difficult.”

Criteria B: These conditions may be
uni que to the subject property and nmay not
generally apply to other properties in the
vicinity.

The property is located in the R1
residential zoning district. Adjacent properties
al ong Bl ue Heron Pond Road are also |ocated in
the R-1 residential zoning district. This |ot
sits adjacent to critical area to the north.
There is an open space area containing a |l eisure
trail to the west of the subject property which
Is located in the parks and recreation zoning
district. Existing structures in the vicinity
may have sim |l ar encroachnments based on the
current setback standards.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"W are not aware of a simlar condition in the
I medi ate area. This condition would only apply

to other properties in the vicinity which the
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critical line and setback extends so far into the
property.”

Criteria C. Because of these
conditions, the application of this ordinance to
the particul ar piece of property would
effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the
utilization of the property.

The application of this ordi nance to the
subj ect property may not prohibit or unreasonably
restrict the utilization of the property.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:

"A hardship is present when the rear and side of
the property has a critical and setback |ine
extending into the property.”

Criteria D: The authorization of the
variance wll not be of substantial detrinment to
adj acent property or to the public good and the
character of the zoning district will not be
harnmed by the granting of the variance.

The aut horization of this variance nay
not be of substantial detrinent to the adjacent
properties or the public good. There is a
| eisure trail | ocated west of the subject
property which allows for a greater buffer

bet ween nei ghboring properties.
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Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The portion that is encroaching into the side
setback is only visible fromthe Kiawah I sl and
| eisure trail. There is natural vegetation and
wi || be added vegetation between the portion of
t he hone and the side property line."

Criteria E: The Board of Zoni ng Appeal s
shall not grant a variance the effect of which
woul d be to allow the establishnent of a use not
otherwi se permtted in a zoning district, to
extend physically a nonconform ng use of |and or
to change the zoning district boundaries shown on
the official zoning map.

Granting of this variance woul d not
all ow the establishnent of a use not otherw se
permtted in the zoning district, extend
physi cally a nonconform ng use of |and or change
the zoning district boundaries.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The property is zoned and i ntended for use as a
single-fam |y hone and has been desi gned as such.
Furthernore, the hone design is conpliant with
all other aspects of the ordinance."

Criteria F: The fact that property may

be utilized nore profitably should a vari ance be
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granted may not be consi dered grounds for a
vari ance.

The BZA may not consider profitability
when considering this variance request.

Criteria G The need for this variance
shall not be the result of the applicant's own
actions.

The need for the variance may not be the
result of the applicant's own acti ons.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"The need for the variance was due to the result
in the ARB asking that the house to be into the
si de setback for design criteria and
functionality, not a request by the owner [sic]."

Criteria H Ganting the variance w ||
not be contrary to the public or nei ghborhood
I nterest nor will not adversely affect other
properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with
the harnmony, spirit, intent and purposes of these
regul ati ons.

Ganting of this variance may not be
contrary to the public or neighborhood interest,
may not adversely affect other property in the
vicinity, nor interfere with the harnony, spirit,

I ntent and purposes of these regul ati ons.
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Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"This property has no nei ghboring hones. One
side is the marsh and the other side is the
trail."

And Criteria |I: Ganting of the
vari ance does not substantially conflict with the
conpr ehensi ve plan or the purposes of this
or di nance.

G anting of the variance nmay not
substantially conflict with the conprehensive
pl an or the purposes of this ordi nance.

Per the applicant's letter of intent:
"Granting this variance we believe wll not
conflict with the conprehensive plan or the
pur poses of the ordinance due to the shifting of
this hone into the side setback to allow for a
better design and functionality of a very
difficult lot to put a desirable hone on."

The Board of Zoning Appeal s may approve,
approve with conditions or deny Case No.

BZA25- 000003 at 129 Bl ue Heron Pond Road, and
again, this is a variance request for the
reduction of the required 20-foot side setback
and required 20-foot rear critical |ine setback

by approxi mately 208 square feet. This concludes

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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staff's review

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, Dan.
Questions for Dan?

MR. FARABEE. Dan, can you give us
a tineline of ownership on this and the
applications and who's doing what on this? It's
just kind of confusing because it was resold on
the 13th. CObviously you can't design this house
In 30 days and get it approved by ARB, | don't
t hi nk, so could you kind of give us the trail of
who di d what ?

MR VINCENT: 1'll give you a
tinmeline fromstaff's perspective, and then we'll
refer to the applicant for his tineline. Wen
staff was doing their staff review, we noticed on
Charl eston County records, the last record of the
property, sold record of the property, was back
I n January of 2021. W received a letter a
coupl e days after posting the materials froma
nei ghbor who notified us of a new deed that was
dat ed January 13th, 2025, which was not updated
in the county's records. So staff was m staken
in that the property was acquired in 2021.
Substantially, we fixed our staff review. In

ternms of design, |I'll leave that up to the
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applicant, but they did apply for the variance in
January of 2025, if that hel ps.

M5. O LEARY: So sonebody bought it
in 2021 and sold it, am| understanding this
correctly, and then 30 days later it's comng to
us for a variance, so it's a new purchase,
purchase of the lot wwth the plans, is that --

MR. VINCENT: [|'Ill defer to the
applicant on that.

M5. O LEARY: Ckay.

MR. CASSI DY: Dan, you sent us sone
material on a restrictions and covenants of The
Preserve. Am | correct that those restrictions
and covenants are enforced by the ARB.

MR. VINCENT: That is correct. W,
as a town, do not enforce covenants or
restrictions. W do require the property owner
to submt an affidavit, signed affidavit; that
affidavit states they understand and abi de by the
covenants and restrictions.

MR. CASSI DY: Oher questions for
Dan?

Ckay. Thank you, Dan.
W'l |l hear fromthe applicant now.

MR. LORENZO  Thank you. Good

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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afternoon. |'m Leo Lorenzo with Canens
Architectural Goup, representing our firm and
the applicant. To answer your question regarding
the tineline on this, this has been a project
that's been in the works for quite a while. W
originally had an owner that was going to build a
spec house on this property. W started with him
around two years ago. W designed several
renditions for this property, went back and forth
wth the ARB several tines to get a design that
was acceptable with the ARB. But since then,
unfortunately, the owner that we originally
desi gned the house for, his conpany unfortunately
fol ded, and sonebody el se bought the property
knowi ng -- with the plans that was al ready
approved fromthe ARB back in January. Then
that's when we are comng to you-all for the
vari ance on the side setback. | hope that
answers the question of tineline.

MR. FARABEE. The current owner is
GSB Hol di ngs?

MR. LORENZO  Yes, sir.

MR. FARABEE.: In the wite-up it
said that the owner is 129 Bl ue Heron Pond, LLC,

MR. LORENZO  That | am not sure

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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about. | would have to get clarification from
that -- on that.

MR. VINCENT: So that 129 Bl ue
Heron Pond, LLC, that was the previous owner back
in 2021.

MR. FARABEE. Oh, the one who

f ol ded.

MR LORENZO  Yes.

MR. VINCENT: Yes. W'I|Il correct
t hat .

MR. LORENZO | apol ogi ze. |
didn't know it by the conpany nane. | only knew

it by the gentl eman's nane.

MR. FARABEE. Well, is GSB Hol di ngs
the current owner?

MR. LORENZO Yes, sir.

MR. FARABEE: And they intend to
build this house but not live init; is that what
you're telling ne?

MR, LORENZO  Correct.

MR. FARABEE. They're going to sell
it off. So you're building a spec house.

MR. LORENZO  Yes, sir.

MR. LEWS:. Wen | put the address

into ny browser in realtor.com it conmes up with

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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a house already there, 20 pictures, a price.

MR. LORENZO | assure you there's
no house there.

MR. FARABEE: | know. Wether it's
a coi nci dence, whatever, it shows the square
footage, price, it shows 3,990 square feet, four
bedroom four bath -- four and a half bath.

MR. LORENZO The only thing | can
think is that they put sone marketing materi al
together to try to sell it.

MR LEWS:. They're good pictures.

MR. LORENZO W did sone
renderings of the house and that, you know,
outside, so |'massumng that's what they put on
there; yes, but the house is not built.

MR. HANAN:. (I naudible.)

MR. LORENZO  There were a | ot of
other renditions. W originally designed the
house as a smaller house, smaller to fit wthin
t he setbacks, and we had it as a front-1|oading
house, you know, for the garage. And what -- you
know, then the ARB, what they required was for us
totry to swtch it to a side-|oading garage and
not have the garage on the front el evation of the

house. So that's why, when we went through that,
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and also to get the single car parking there, you
know, we could only get the single car versus the
requi red two car parking off street; but when we
switched the garage to the side versus the front,
that's when we went to the ARB and they, you
know, said, well, we'll go into the side setback
to acconplish the side | oadi ng garage.

MR. FARABEE: |s the ARB going to
tal k about this one?

M5. HAYES: Not in that nuch
detail .

MR. FARABEE: Ckay. Maybe when
he's done | have a question for you.

M5. O LEARY: Leo, the other
setback, as small as it is, that pool is setting
back into the marsh water.

MR. LORENZO | | ooked back -- |
| ooked at that. W can pull that pool in.

M5. O LEARY. That's a really
t enuous marsh back there in back of the house,
and even the side of the house. You know,
they're redoing that whole Kill deer Pond Trail
because it's a ness because the water goes over
t hat bri dge when we have any type of heavy rain,

so that's a definite concern.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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MR. LORENZO  So, yes, but the
pool, that can be pulled back even 2 feet to be
wi thin the setback.

M5. O LEARY: And there wasn't any
way to slide the house to go back to nmake it nore

narrow so that you' re not needing the other

vari ance for the side of the house, | nmean --
because you've already -- you already did sone
wth a smaller honme, and it was still wthin the

requi renents of The Preserve but then to nake --
this is all because you had to accommpdate the
par ki ng on the side?

MR. LORENZO Well, and also to be
able to swing into a side-entry garage.

MR. HANAN. But you do have
draw ngs that do neet the requirenents of that
| ot .

MR. LORENZO Yes. They're very
old renditions, yes, but like | said, it has a
front-1oadi ng garage on those.

MR. HANAN:. | under st and.

MR. CASSIDY. Are you famliar with
Ms. Mcllvain's comments?

MR. LORENZO Yes, | did see them

MR. CASSI DY: She makes a point

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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about clear-cutting which | couldn't quite get.
Can you comment on that?

MR. LORENZO | don't know if she
nmeant, you know, the clear-cutting down along the
trail, but our |andscape plan shows that we are
going to | eave the existing vegetation al ong
there and then al so add any additional vegetation
for screening on that side of the house as well.

M5. O LEARY: The other comment,
Leo, was that it had said that there were no
nei ghbors to the west because that was the trail,
but there's actually a nei ghbor on the other side
of the trail.

MR. LORENZO There is, but nornal
ci rcunst ances, when you have obviously two |ots
next to each other, the honmes are roughly 40 to
45 feet apart; but with the addition of the
| ei sure trail, | put a scale onit, and we're
probably about 75 feet between hones.

MR, CASSI DY: Oher questions for
M. Lorenzo?

Ckay. Thank you, sir.
MR. LORENZO  Thank you.
MR. CASSIDY: 1'd ask if there are

any nenbers of the public who would |ike to speak

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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to this.

MR. FARABEE. Excuse ne. First |
have a question of the Architectural Review
Boar d.

MR. CASSIDY: Sure. Could you step
up for a second, and then we'll get to your
coments. | apol ogi ze.

Go ahead, Ben.

MR. FARABEE: There's a statenent
there that the owner makes that the need for the
vari ance was due to the result in the ARB asking
t hat the house be used -- that the house be into
the side setback for design criteria and
functionality, not a request by the owner. |Is
that a typical effort of the ARB?

M5. HAYES. | -- that's a large
question. Wat | can do is speak to this
submttal which, you know, there was a reference
to the covenants and restrictions for The
Preserve, which the ARB uphol ds, and those do
represent that there is a preservation zone at
the front of the property, as well as a selective
clearing zone at the rear of the property and a
stormnater filter buffer along that critical

line. So | don't recall, personally, having seen
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a front-1oaded garage for this property, but | do
I mgine, if we had seen that, we woul d have said,
it is not conpatible with the covenants and
restrictions and preservation of all the materi al
within that front preservation zone.

What | also recall is that -- so if you
cannot have paving, you know, that is 40 feet
wi de at the front of the house, then you by
default have to conme in fromthe side. You
cannot cone in fromthe leisure trail side, so
that | eaves only one other place to cone in with
your driveway and your garaging. Wat | do
recall fromthe review is that the guest parking
and the paving in sonme previous submttals was
originally wiwthin the critical line buffer area,
which to us is a much nore sensitive area than an
area of narrow wdth along the side setback and
the leisure trail which has the 75 feet between
nei ghbors so that the variance al ong that side
coul d be nmuch easier to buffer and have | ess
I npact on the site than a variance into the
critical area, which we don't -- you know, we
don't feel that we are allowed to approve i npact
within the critical zone.

MR. FARABEE. So how did you

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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conprom se your design criteria and functionality
in order to get within the setbacks, how did you
consi der that?

M5. HAYES. Those words are not ny
wor ds.

MR. FARABEE: | understand, but the
owner said they are the ARB's words.

M5. O LEARY: Right. And the owner
Is welcone to answer that question through his
representative. |'mnot able to do so.

MR. FARABEE: Ckay. But what
you're telling ne is you're maintaining your
design criteria and functionality, and we' ve got
to give up our variance standards so you can neet
your standards; is that what you' re saying with
t hi s house?

M5. HAYES: That is not what | am
saying, no. | amsaying that the ARB approved
this setback variance, and |'m here to support
it. | believe that the unique conditions of this
site warrant a small anount of setback variance
for the property.

M5. O LEARY: But, in essence, you
are giving and taking because of a conment that

you had said that there is 75 feet between this

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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house and the next house with the |leisure trail
I n between, so it's okay to ask for that vari ance

on the side of the house; but you're nore worried

about the critical line instead of trying to
actually fit the hone into a different -- | nean,
it said on response | that -- want to nmake sure |
say this correctly -- "the ordi nance due to the

shifting of this hone into the side setback to
allow for a better design and functionality of a
very difficult lot to put a desirable hone on."
So maybe instead of |ooking at building a
desirable hone, if we had | ooked at buil di ng
within the appropriate ot |ines because it's

| i ke your robbing Peter to pay Paul.

M5. HAYES: Well, | don't know t hat
| can agree with that statenent. | think the ARB
I's very judicious and | ooks for extraordinary
ci rcunstances when it is considering setback
vari ances, and the critical |ine encroachnment and
t he pi e-shaped nature of the ot we believe
warrant set back variances on this property.

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, ma'am

O her questions?
Yes, ma'am

M5. LEIMAN. Good afternoon. My

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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nanme is Andrea Leiman. M husband and | reside
at -- full-tine at 128 Bl ue Heron Pond Road,
directly across the street fromthis lot. M
famly began vacationing on Kiawah in the 1980's.
We spent summers exploring the island, i1magining
where we mght want to |ive one day. As The
Preserve was devel oped and with the effort to

mai ntai n respect for the natural beauty of the

I sland, this nei ghborhood was an irresistible
choice in our future planning.

So in 2015 we purchased a | ot which does
back onto the marsh of Blue Heron Pond. It had
limtations to the size and shape of the house.
| n our purchase contract we had 30 days to see if
we coul d design a hone we wanted within the
constraints of the size, shape and | ocati on of
the lot. W worked with an architect to design
such a hone which required sone size and design
adj ustnents in order to conformto the
devel opnent rules. It never would have occurred
to us to try to change the rules to accommbdat e
what we m ght want to build because, by
definition, the variance woul d have negatively
| npacted the natural surroundings, that is, it

woul d have i npinged on the nmarshland and their

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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natural coverage of the |ot.

We have lived across the street from 129
for over seven years, assuming it would never be
devel oped, given its size, shape, water coverage
and | ocation adjacent to the nature trail. The
trail on the other side of the road has
KI CA-owned buffer |and at the entrance which adds
to the beauty and overall appeal. Thus, we all
have anticipated that KICA would protect the
entrance to this trail. These trails are used
conti nuously by residents and visitors alike. In
fact, KICA is now working on enhancing this trail
right next to Lot 129, as it is used so
frequently and enjoyed by so many. W had
naturally expected the area to be | eft untouched,
so we were stunned in 2021 to find that the | ot
was actual ly purchased.

The limtations of building on this | ot
are not hidden. Professional investors purchased
this ot in 2021 and then nore in 2025 | ast
nmont h, and they knew or shoul d have known the
ri sks i nherent in devel oping such a ridicul ous
|l ot. Instead of being respectful of the
nei ghbor hood and the natural beauty of The

Preserve, they are trying to enlarge the size of

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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the hone, clearly in order to nmaxim ze the profit
fromthe purchase of this |ot.

It is disturbing that the present
owners, GSB Hol dings, paid $1 mllion for this
|l ot last nmonth. This is four tines what it was
sold for three years ago -- or four years ago.
The piece of -- the price of a larger lot on the
sane side of Blue Heron Pond Road sold a couple
nont hs ago, which is larger and nore conform ng,
and that sold for $600, 000.

The covenants of The Preserve state that
bui | di ng coverage i s supposed to be no nore than
actually 30 percent of the lot. The devel opers
of this |lot are requesting a variance for | ot
coverage of alnost 34 percent. This is totally
unaccept abl e.

It is vital to note that the devel opers
are already marketing, as sonebody nentioned, a
house online prior to receiving this variance
with a price tag of $5.2 mllion. The hone
description on the website includes a pool and
claims it has great views of Blue Heron Pond.
The house, in fact, is across the street from
Bl ue Heron Pond. It is in fact --

MR CASSIDY: You're over the three

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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mnutes. 1'd ask you to wap up.
M5. LEIMAN. Okay. Just a m nute.
So it's on the back of Killdeer Pond.
Just because you want sonet hing doesn't nean you
shoul d have it. The devel opers knew full well
the limtations of this lot. Their cavalier
attitude toward the nei ghborhood are shocki ng,
and stating that, quote, encroaching the side
setback is only visible fromthe Kiawah Isl and
trail reflects their callous and di sm ssive
attitude towards The Preserve and all of us who
live there and use it. Denying the extrene
negati ve i npact by building out on the back and
side of this lot is msrepresentative and
di srespectful. | respectfully request you deny
any variance of this |ot.
MR CASSI DY: Thank you, ma'am
Appreciate it.
O her comments fromthe public?
Yes, sir. Please go to the podi um
MR BRODY: Hi, |I'm Steven Brody.
My wife and | |ive at 140 Bl ue Heron Pond Road.
Thank you for giving nme the opportunity to speak.
When ny house at 140 was desi gned and
approved by M. Lorenzo and Ms. Hayes, | was
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specifically told that nmy |ot coverage coul dn't
be nore than 30 percent. |'mnot quite sure
where 33 or 34 percent cane fromnow, but | nade
sure ny house, on the advice of the Canens firm
was firmy at 30 percent. Also, ny garage is a
front-1oading garage, which is not really within
t he design guidelines of The Preserve, but in
order to make our house fit on our lot, we were
gi ven perm ssion to have a front-|oaded garage
because of constraints of our |lot which weren't
even on our plat or site plan. They were
actually conditions that were inposed after we
purchased the lot. So | think the idea of not
having a front-1loading garage i s a speci ous
argunent. | don't think it's really true.

The other thing that | would point out,
I n the Septenber 2016 Preserve Design Guidelines,
Section 3 specifically states that the | ot
coverage in The Preserve is 30 percent, not 34
per cent.

| also would point out that this | ot
Is -- probably never should have been a lot. |
think it's a lot only because the original
devel opers, probably due to maybe their

I nsati abl e greed, took any piece of |and they
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could get and were going to shove a house on
there. This ot is a very unusual shape. It's a
very undesirable lot, and the truth is just
because you want to put a four-bedroom 4,000
square foot house on it so you can sell it for $5
mllion clearly shows that sonebody's trying to
create an undue profit fromthis property.

Regar di ng Section C of the variance
request, it is only a hardship if you want to
bui | d an i nappropri ate house on a poorly situated
lot. The | ot does not support the design of
M. Canens and M. Lorenzo. Thank you.

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, sir.
Yes, sir.
MR. HEALY. Good afternoon. M

name i s Joseph Healy. | live at the end, 152
Bl ue Heron Pond Road. | really just want to
coment on three things regarding the criteria.
One, the uniqueness of their property. Well, we
have a very thin piece of property with a pond
behi nd us and a cul -de-sac, and we -- |ike all
architects, it's a balancing act, and we kind of
had to contort to get the house we wanted. But
in the end, we had to conply with the ARB and we

had to conply with the town rules; so we had no
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exceptions, and the ARB actually, you know, gave
us a couple nos on a couple things we wanted to
do.

| also want to touch on F. This is a
prof essi onal investor. How can you say there's
no profit notive here? The bigger the house you
have, the nore noney you nmake. That's just very
si npl e.

And the last thing is on H which is
that there's no neighboring hone for the |eisure
trail. The trails are actually one of the nost
attractive elenents of The Preserve. | nean,

Ki awah Real Estate highlights that.

Sony wfe and | -- in fact, | think
M . Farabee was over there inspecting the other
day as we were just finishing a wal k. Those are
beautiful trails and, you know, if you bunp up
right against it, in my opinion, you are taking a
very attractive resource and dimnishing it.

Now, can you quantify that? No. But to ne you
have a sacred duty to try as best you can to
respect the rules that we all agree to |ive under
when we signed our contracts. So thank you for
t he opportunity to speak.

MR. CASSI DY: Thank you, sir.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Any ot her comments?
Yes, ma' am
M5. HAYES: | don't want to bel abor

anything, but | did just want to clarify a few
itens that have cone up. The first, regarding
| ot coverage, the covenants and restrictions for
The Preserve say that maxi num | ot coverage is
approxi mately 30 percent. The ARB has been
consi stent in applying 33 percent .0 maxi num | ot
coverage for all properties that are over 12,000
square feet, so this one is not a variance in
terns of | ot coverage.

In addition, | would also say that the
ARB | ooks very carefully at -- again, at
vari ances and i npact on nei ghborhoods and the
greater community and, you know, | would maintain
that the variance request that is being proposed
here will not have a perceivable inpact on the
| ei sure trail and honmeowners' use of it. Qur
approval for planting between the actual trail
| ocation and the side of the hone is for a
mul til ayered and dense buffer so that the house
I s enbedded within vegetation and the trail can
continue to be enjoyed by owners. Thank you.

M5. OLEARY. Can | just ask a

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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gui ck question?

MR. CASSI DY: Sure.

M5. O LEARY: | thought you had
said that you approve up to 33 percent for | ot
coverage, correct? Because it's approxinmately
30, you know. kay. So | don't want to be a
nitpicker, but this is 33.99, so essentially we
are over even what you've allowed for.

M5. HAYES:. Yes, |'mglad you
asked, and the answer to that question is, no,
they are not over what is allowed for. Could the
t abl e have been nore clearly labeled for clarity?
Possibly. So 33.0 percent is the nmaxinum al | owed
for primary | ot coverage, which is all required
el ements plus structure, okay. And then Town and
ARB al | ow for secondary | ot coverage, which is
pervi ous nonrequired el enents, which is what they

are including, which gives you then the total | ot

cover age.

M5. O LEARY: Ckay.

M5. HAYES: Yes.

M5. O LEARY: | see what you're
sayi ng.

M5. HAYES: So you coul d have a

total |lot coverage, actually, of 39.67, given

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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everyone's current guidelines and ordi nances.

M5. O LEARY: | just go back to
this is such, such a small lot that you're
putting this big house on that -- anyway, we've

all discussed it. Done.

MR. CASSIDY: M. Lorenzo, did you
want to make any further constituents?

MR. LORENZO No, sir.

MR. CASSIDY: Al right. That's

MR LEWS:. | have a question for
either staff or maybe even legal. How do the
covenants and restrictions for The Preserve
relate to what we | ook at? They don't supersede.

MR, MCQUI LLAN: They don't
supersede, so the covenants and restrictions can
be stricter than what the Town requires, but they
can't be | ooser than what the Town requires.

MR LEWS: It's for our
consi derati on.

MR, MCQUI LLAN:  Yes.

MR. CASSIDY: Wth that 1'l1
entertain any notions that anyone would like to
make.

MR. HANAN: |'d i ke to make a

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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notion it be denied.

MR. CASSI DY: Morris, could I ask
you to specify which criteria?

MR. HANAN. First of all, by H,
because there's definitely a concern it's
contrary to public and nei ghborhood interest.

MR. CASSIDY: |Is there a second?

M5. O LEARY: Second.

MR. CASSI DY: Seconded by Lin.

Furt her di scussion?

MR FARABEE: 1'd like to just
comment that, walking that trail, which is a
| eisure trail, which is a very nice trail, |

agree with sone of the comments here. That house
woul d be so close to that trail it would | ook

| i ke wal ki ng through an all ey, not wal ki ng

through a leisure trail. And the house on the
other side of the trail is quite a bit of
di stance fromthe trail, and I think it would

| ook really funny and destroy the trail.
MR, CASSI DY: O her comments?
Al right. |If not, we'll vote then. An
aye vote is to deny the variance request.
Ben?

MR, FARABEE: Aye.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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CASSI Dy:  Jay?

LEWS: Aye.

CASSI DY: Morris?

HANAN:  Aye.

CASSI DY:  Lin?

O LEARY: Aye.

CASSI DY: And Frank, aye.

2P DD DDD

So it's unaninous. The request for the
variance is denied, primarily because of Criteria
H, the nei ghborhood interest.

Ckay. Wth that we are done with
vari ance requests today. W have one further
t hi ng on our agenda today, and that's our annual
review of our rules and procedure. | note that
we did a pretty extensive review of these rules
| ast year, so | don't have any comments or
changes to suggest. Does anyone want to talk

about any of that?

MR. FARABEE: | do.
MR CASSI DY: Yes, sir, Ben.
MR. FARABEE: | do this every tine

we review this, so with regard to the nenbership,
| think the five residents and two nonresidents
Is a throwback to the time when there weren't

many residents here, and |I think that we should

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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have seven residents on this commttee that
are -- neet the criteria (inaudible).

When | owned ny property -- | bought ny
property eight years before we started buil ding
here, and whether it was right or not, | had
little thought to what the hell was going on
here. | had ny property, and | was happy wth
that, and | wasn't interested in the day-to-day
kind of activity like | am now.

As a full-time resident, | believe
people are nore interested in what's goi ng on and
bei ng nore participated, they can view the |ots
as we do when we go and consi der these variances,
and | just think that a full-tinme resident can
make a better decision than a part-tinme resident.

MR. CASSIDY: |Is there support for
t hat point?

Go ahead, Dan.

MR, VINCENT: M. Farabee, sorry to
interrupt, but it does say at least five of the
nmenbers shall be residents, but then again | ower
It says the BZA may consist of as nany as two
residents; so there can be as many as two but
there may not be any that are --

MR. FARABEE: | don't think there

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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shoul d be any so it shouldn't be nmay.

MR LEWS: | would just offer ny
personal -- I"'mnot here -- I'"'mhere right at six
nonths, if that, having four kids in three other
states, none of which is South Carolina. |

travel quite a bit, so | nmake every effort to be

here but --

MR CASSI DY: Do you vote here,
Jay?

MR LEWS: No, | do not. That's a
tax question at this point. But very soon. |'m

down to ny last kid. Once | get themoff the
payroll, then yes.

M5. O LEARY: They're never off the

payrol | .

(Overl appi ng di al ogue.)

MR. CASSIDY: | appreciate Ben's
point here. | can picture, though, a property

owner that, where this is their main secondary
resi dence and | think who woul d have just as nuch
desire to keep track of the way things are going
here as a resident would, but | understand the
point. W can certainly vote to change if others
agree with this.

M5. O LEARY: lt's |like a

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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doubl e- edged sword. | agree with what you say,
sone part-tinme owners have as nuch of an
I nvestnent as a full-tinme ower, and Jay's a
perfect exanple of that, but it says may. W
don't have to have that, you know, | guess.

(Overl appi ng di al ogue.)

MR HANAN: [|t's | oose enough the
way it is.

M5. O LEARY. [It's | oose enough,
but the majority of us are full-tine.

MR, CASSIDY: | think everybody
here, possibly, with the exception of Jay.

MR LEWS:. It's nothing personal,
just ny situation.

MR. CASSIDY: Shall we |eave it for
t he nonment ?

MR. FARABEE: Pardon ne?

MR, CASSIDY: Are you okay wth
| eaving it as it is?

MR. FARABEE: Well, you're going to
outvote rme.

MR. CASSI DY: Looks like it.

MR. FARABEE. |'mjust saying, |
voiced it last tinme and the tinme before and the

time before. | feel strongly about it, and |

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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will voice it again next year.

MR. CASSI DY: Fair enough.

M5. O LEARY. Can | just ask a
qui ck question? Were do we stand wth the other
two nenbers?

MR. TAYLOR: So our last two
menbers who are not present at this neeting,

t hey, as you you-all nay be aware, | shared a
conmuni cation that they were not reappointed, as
we wanted to advertise those positions to the
community. W have advertised those positions to
the community. Have not gotten any additi onal
interest, so we anticipate that they will be
returning, and it's slated for the March Town
Counci | agenda for reappoi ntnents.

M5. O LEARY: And do we have March
schedul es? Do we have applications?

MR. VI NCENT: W have one, yes.

MR. TAYLOR: One case for next
nont h.

MR. CASSIDY: So there wll be a
March neeting and Phil and Larry will be back
with us at that tine.

MR. LEWS:. Has the schedule for

the rest of the year been published?

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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MR. CASSIDY: Yes. | have it here,
Jay.

MR. TAYLOR: | think we probably
created a hard copy for you-all last neeting. W

can re-share the full schedule out so you have
it.

MR LEWS:. | apologize. | didn't
see that.

MR CASSI DY: Ckay. Anything else
bef ore we adj ourn?

Al right. Thank you all very nuch.

(Over | appi ng di al ogue.)

MR. CASSIDY: W need a notion to
adj ourn.

M5. O LEARY. Mbtion to adjourn.

MR. HANAN: Second.

MR. CASSIDY: Al in favor?

(Al indicate in the affirmative.)

(Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

|, Ruth Mott, Registered
Pr of essi onal Reporter, Certified Realtine
Reporter, and hbtar% Public for the State of
South Carolina, do hereby certify that the
W tnesses in the fore%oing heari ng were duly
sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth
and nothing but the truth in the within-entitled
cause; that said matter was taken at the tine and
| ocation therein stated; that the testinnnx of
the wtnesses and all objections made at the tine
of the hearing were recorded stenographically by
me and were thereafter transcribed by
conput er-ai ded transcription, and that the
foregoing is a full, conplete and true record of
the testinony of the wi tnesses and of all
obj ections nade at the tine of the hearing.

| further certify that | am neither
related to nor counsel for any party to the cause
pendi ng or interested in the events thereof.

W t ness hand, | have hereunto
affixed ny official seal on March 25, 2025 at
Moncks Corner, Berkeley County, South Carolina.

Ruth Mott,
Regi st ered Prof essi onal
Reporter Certified Realtine
Reporter
Conm ssi on expires
Decenber 19, 2034
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  All right.  So we'll



                 2    get started.  I'd like to call to order the



                 3    February 24, 2025 meeting of the Town of Kiawah



                 4    Island Board of Zoning Appeals.  I'm Frank



                 5    Cassidy.  I'm the chair.  In addition to myself



                 6    the members hearing the cases today are Lin



                 7    O'Leary, Morris Hanan, Jay Lewis and Ben Farabee.



                 8    Staff members present here are Dan Vincent from



                 9    our planning staff, John Taylor, our planning



                10    director, and Mac McQuillan, our town attorney.



                11    Our case rulings from this and any BZA meeting



                12    are available for public review and inspection



                13    during normal business hours at the town hall.



                14             Since our meeting is being conducted



                15    virtually via Zoom, please be reminded that in



                16    order to obtain a clean and clear record for



                17    persons listening live it's important that all



                18    participants not speak over one another.  If



                19    you'd like to speak, please raise your hand, I'll



                20    recognize you, and you can come to the mike.



                21    I've also been asked to remind the BZA members



                22    that you should also speak into the mikes when



                23    you speak.



                24             First on our agenda today is the



                25    election of officers for 2025.  I'd entertain a
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                 1    nomination for chair.



                 2                  MR. HANAN:  I'd like to renominate



                 3    Frank Cassidy to continue as the chair.



                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Is there a second?



                 5                  MR. LEWIS:  I'd second.



                 6                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any other



                 7    nominations?



                 8             Any further discussion?



                 9             All in favor please say aye.



                10                  (All in favor.)



                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you everybody.



                12    Jay Lewis is our current vice chair.  I'd



                13    entertain a motion to nominate Jay to continue.



                14                  MS. O'LEARY:  I nominate Jay to



                15    continue.



                16                  MR. HANAN:  Second.



                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any further



                18    discussion?



                19                  MS. O'LEARY:  Do you want more



                20    discussion, Jay?



                21                  MR. LEWIS:  No.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  All in favor please



                23    say aye.



                24                  (All in favor.)



                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  Congratulations, Jay.
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                 1             By our rules of procedure the planning



                 2    director acts as board secretary.  I'd entertain



                 3    a motion nominating John Taylor as secretary.



                 4                  MS. O'LEARY:  I nominate John



                 5    Taylor as secretary.



                 6                  MR. HANAN:  I'll second it.



                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any further



                 8    discussion?



                 9             All in favor please say aye.



                10                  (All in favor.)



                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Congratulations,



                12    John.



                13             At this time I'd like to explain to the



                14    public the workings of the BZA.  The Board of



                15    Zoning Appeals is a quasi-judicial body



                16    established to interpret and grant relief from



                17    the zoning ordinance.  The Board of Zoning



                18    Appeals has jurisdiction over three types of



                19    cases, appeals, variances, which is what we're



                20    going to be doing today, and special exceptions.



                21             Appeals are heard regarding



                22    administrative actions or decisions by the zoning



                23    administrator and/or staff.  Variances may be



                24    granted when strict application of the zoning



                25    ordinance would cause an unnecessary hardship.
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                 1    The board's actions must be based on specific



                 2    standards as contained in SC Local Government



                 3    Planning Enabling Act of 1994 and the Town of



                 4    Kiawah Island Zoning Ordinance.  Special



                 5    exceptions allow the board to permit uses if



                 6    certain conditions as contained in the zoning



                 7    ordinance are met.  A simple majority vote of the



                 8    quorum present is required to grant a variance or



                 9    to overturn the decision of the zoning



                10    administrator in an appeal or to grant a special



                11    exception.



                12             Because today's hearing is a public



                13    fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with



                14    the Freedom of Information Act and SC Code



                15    6-29-70.  15 days prior to the hearing an



                16    announcement was printed in the Post & Courier, a



                17    sign was posted on or near the designated



                18    property, and a notice was mailed to the



                19    applicant or representative and to residents



                20    within 500 feet of the application and to parties



                21    of interest.  Persons, organizations and the news



                22    media that have requested declaration of our



                23    meeting have also been notified.  The Freedom of



                24    Information Act does not require notification of



                25    anyone other than the applicant and the parties
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                 1    of interest.



                 2             Our purpose today is for interested



                 3    parties to be heard in order to assist the board



                 4    in gathering evidence pertinent to each case.  If



                 5    the members of the BZA feel the need for further



                 6    information to clarify a case, the board has the



                 7    authority to subpoena witnesses.  In addition to



                 8    your testimony, our board has been presented



                 9    written information submitted to the staff by the



                10    applicant or their agent for each case.  This



                11    information is now considered to be evidence and



                12    is entered into the permanent record of this



                13    body.  It's assumed that it is complete, true and



                14    accurate.  Also we've been presented data



                15    assembled by the staff for the purpose of



                16    clarifying the location and effect on surrounding



                17    property.



                18             Our board is empowered to approve,



                19    approve with conditions, or to deny your request.



                20    In granting a variance the board of zoning



                21    appeals may attach such conditions regarding the



                22    location, character or other features of the



                23    proposed building structure or use as the board



                24    may consider advisable to protect established



                25    property values in the surrounding area or to
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                 1    promote the public health, safety and general



                 2    welfare.  We are also authorized to defer a case



                 3    should there be a need to obtain additional



                 4    information.



                 5             If an applicant's request is approved



                 6    for a special exemption, a variance or an appeal



                 7    of a decision by the zoning administrator, they



                 8    must go to if the Town of Kiawah Island to apply



                 9    for permits.  Variances and special exceptions



                10    granted by the BZA are valid for 12 months after



                11    this meeting.  However, if an applicant's request



                12    is disapproved and they wish to appeal the



                13    decision of this board concerning their case,



                14    appeals must be addressed to the Circuit Court.



                15    SC Code 6-29-820 states that the appeal must be



                16    filed by the applicant within 30 days after the



                17    decision of the board is mailed to them.  Failure



                18    to file an appeal within the time limit deprives



                19    the court of jurisdiction to hear the matter.



                20             For each case staff will present



                21    information, the applicant will present their



                22    case, and will hear from any others who wish to



                23    speak.  Be reminded to direct your comments to



                24    the board, not the applicant or other speakers.



                25             To expedite the process of people
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                 1    speaking, I'd ask all persons who intend to speak



                 2    today about either case to stand, and Mac will



                 3    administer the oath.



                 4                  MR. MCQUILLAN:  If you could stand



                 5    and raise your right hand and repeat after me.



                 6                  (Witnesses placed under oath.)



                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Mac and



                 8    thank you everyone.



                 9             I shall now call case BZA-25-000002 at



                10    219 High Dunes Lane.  First we'll hear from Dan



                11    from the staff, then the applicant, then others.



                12    All speakers should come to the podium, state



                13    your name and current address for the record,



                14    before presenting testimony.  I'll limit comments



                15    by the public to three minutes, and the applicant



                16    will have a chance to rebuttal if necessary.



                17             Dan, it's all yours.



                18                  MR. VINCENT:  Thank you, Mr.



                19    Chairman, members of the BZA.  Our first case



                20    today, this Case No. BZA 25-000002 the applicant



                21    and property owner, JDF Investment Services, LLC,



                22    being represented by Heather Wilson of Heather A.



                23    Wilson Architects, is requesting a variance for



                24    the reduction of the required 15-foot side



                25    setback for approximately 488 square feet for a
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                 1    proposed new single family home located at 219



                 2    High Dunes Lane.  The TMS number is



                 3    265-16-00-236.  The subject property is located



                 4    in the R-2 Residential Zoning District within the



                 5    Ocean Parks neighborhood.  The subject property



                 6    is currently undeveloped.



                 7             The lot is approximately 13,520 square



                 8    feet in size in which approximately 11,919 square



                 9    feet is highlands and the remaining 1,601 square



                10    feet consists of marshlands.  Subject property



                11    sits adjacent to marsh to the south.



                12             The Town of Kiawah Island's Land Use



                13    Planning and Zoning Ordinance requires a front



                14    setback of 25 feet, 15-foot side setbacks and a



                15    25-foot rear setback.  Subject property has a



                16    maximum lot coverage, allowable lot coverage, of



                17    40 percent.  The proposed lot coverage is 39.55



                18    percent.



                19             The South Carolina Department of



                20    Environmental Services Bureau of Coastal



                21    Management, or BCM for short, certifies the



                22    critical areas present on the property as



                23    indicated by a survey dated August 31st, 2020.



                24    Furthermore, a 15-foot stormwater buffer is



                25    located on the 25-foot rear SCDES BCM critical
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                 1    line.



                 2             Here is a zoning map of the subject



                 3    property (indicating).



                 4             We'll let the record show we have



                 5    received two public comments.  You can see on the



                 6    map shown on your screen where exactly those



                 7    comments have come from.  Both are in opposition.



                 8             Here is a Charleston County GIS aerial



                 9    view of the subject property (indicating).



                10             The subject property is located in Ocean



                11    Park neighborhood which was previously governed



                12    by the 2013 Amended and Restated Development



                13    Agreement, ARDA for short, by and between Kiawah



                14    Resort Associates and the Town of Kiawah.  Under



                15    the ARDA the subject property was designed as



                16    part of the undeveloped lands identified in



                17    Exhibit 1.3, undeveloped land parcel.  Ocean



                18    Park, which was parcel 43, was within the R-2



                19    Residential category, subject to standards



                20    outlined in Exhibit 13.3, Table of General Lot



                21    Standards, inside the ARDA.  The standards of



                22    Exhibit 13.3, Table of General Lot Standards for



                23    lot sizes between 8,000 square feet and 11,999



                24    square feet, included a 25-foot front setback, a



                25    10-foot side setback and a 25-foot rear setback.
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                 1             Following the expiration of the ARDA on



                 2    December 4th, 2023, the setback requirements for



                 3    the subject property at 219 High Dunes Lane as



                 4    prescribed by the Land Use Planning and Zoning



                 5    Ordinance, Article II, Zoning, Division 2, Zoning



                 6    Map/Districts, Section 12-66, R-2 Residential



                 7    District, and Table 2C, Lot Standards for R-2



                 8    include a 25-foot front setback, a 15-foot side



                 9    setback, and a 25-foot rear setback.



                10             Per Charleston County records the home



                11    was acquired by JDF Investment Services, LLC, on



                12    April 28th, 2023, prior to the expirations of the



                13    ARDA.



                14             The applicant has submitted to the



                15    Kiawah Island Architectural Review Board for



                16    interim final review and have been granted



                17    approval on January 17th, 2025 stating, "The



                18    design of your home is approved to continue to



                19    the permit submittal pending an approved interim



                20    submittal.  As you move forward, please address



                21    the following comments and conditions in keeping



                22    with the guidelines:  The ARB supports and



                23    appreciates the unique site development and



                24    architectural design which allows the



                25    preservation of the 35-inch live oak root zone
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                 1    and full canopy despite its substantial impact on



                 2    the buildable area."



                 3             A site visit was conducted on February



                 4    7th, 2025.  At the time the following



                 5    determinations were made.  Here are a few site



                 6    pictures of the site:  Front of the property,



                 7    adjacent properties (indicating).  The adjacent



                 8    property to the East the subject property is



                 9    developed, which is 217 High Dunes; and the



                10    adjacent property to the west of the subject



                11    property is currently undeveloped.



                12             Let the record show that we have



                13    received a public comment for that undeveloped



                14    parcel at 221 High Dunes, which is west of the



                15    subject property.



                16             More site pictures (indicating).



                17             The proposed plans include a new single



                18    family home.  There is a 35-inch grand live oak



                19    tree located on the east side of the property



                20    within the buildable area.  The proposed single



                21    family home encroaches into the required 15-foot



                22    east side setback by approximately 4 feet, 5



                23    inches as per this plan.  The total encroachment



                24    into the east side setback is approximately 151



                25    square feet.  Additionally, portions of the
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                 1    proposed single-family home encroach into the



                 2    15-foot west side setback by approximately 6



                 3    feet, 5 inches at its furthest point.  Total



                 4    encroachments on the west side setback is



                 5    approximately 337 square feet, for a total



                 6    encroachment of approximately 488 square feet.



                 7             Here's a better representation of the



                 8    area outside the setbacks, colored in red; here's



                 9    some proposed renderings provided by the



                10    applicant; and then a proposed landscape plan



                11    (indicating).



                12             The BZA may grant a variance only if



                13    exceptional circumstances exist and where



                14    practical difficulty or unnecessary hardships is



                15    so substantial, serious or compelling that



                16    relaxation of the general restrictions ought be



                17    granted.



                18             I'll start with the criteria.  Criteria



                19    A:  There are extraordinary and exceptional



                20    conditions pertaining to the particular piece of



                21    property.



                22             There may be extraordinary and



                23    exceptional conditions on this property.  The



                24    35-inch grand live oak tree and root zone



                25    significantly encroach into the buildable area.
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                 1             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 2    "There is a grand live oak on the center of the



                 3    lot.  The tree impacts the buildable area with



                 4    the root zone protection as well as limits the



                 5    height of the adjacent roof lines.  This



                 6    necessitates a design comprised of mostly



                 7    single-story elements which increases the



                 8    footprint and need for side setback relief."



                 9             Criteria B:  These conditions do not



                10    generally apply to other properties in the



                11    vicinity.



                12             These conditions may be unique to the



                13    subject property and may not generally apply to



                14    other properties in the vicinity.  The property



                15    is located in the R-2 Residential Zoning



                16    District.  Adjacent properties along High Dunes



                17    Lane are also located in the R-2 Residential



                18    Zoning District.  The lot sits adjacent to the



                19    marsh to the south.  There is an open space area



                20    north of the subject property located in the



                21    Parks and Recreation Zoning District.  Existing



                22    structures in the vicinity may have similar



                23    encroachments based on current setback standards.



                24             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                25    "The neighboring homes were all built to the

�

                                                                      16







                 1    guidelines of the ARDA zoning, as this lot was



                 2    intended to be.  The original zoning of this lot



                 3    allowed for the 10-foot side yard setbacks and



                 4    greater latitude of tree protection."



                 5             Criteria C:  Because of these conditions



                 6    the application of this ordinance to the



                 7    particular piece of property would effectively



                 8    prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization



                 9    of the property.



                10             The application of this ordinance to the



                11    subject property may not prohibit or unreasonably



                12    restrict the utilization of the property.



                13             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                14    "The application of the current ordinance would



                15    unreasonably restrict the development of this



                16    property.  The current ordinance restriction, in



                17    concert with the limb and root pattern of the



                18    grand live oak, would limit the use of the



                19    property, especially as compared to all adjacent



                20    and surrounding properties."



                21             Criteria D:  The authorization of the



                22    variance will not be of substantial detriment to



                23    adjacent properties or the public good, and the



                24    character of the zoning district will not be



                25    harmed by the granting of this variance.
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                 1             The authorization of this variance may



                 2    not be of substantial detriment to the adjacent



                 3    properties for the public good.



                 4             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 5    "The variance would allow the property to be in



                 6    keeping with the design and intent of the marsh



                 7    walk zoning.  This is one of the few lots



                 8    remaining, and it is in the best interests of the



                 9    marsh walk neighborhood to be developed to the



                10    same standards as the surrounding properties."



                11             Criteria E:  The Board of Zoning Appeals



                12    shall not grant a variance the effect of which



                13    would be to allow the establishment of a use not



                14    otherwise permitted in a zoning district, to



                15    extend physically a nonconforming use of land, or



                16    to change the zoning district boundaries shown on



                17    the official zoning map.



                18             Granting of this variance would not



                19    allow the establishment of a use not otherwise



                20    permitted in the zoning district, extend



                21    physically a nonconforming use of land or change



                22    the zoning district boundaries.



                23             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                24    "The property is zoned and intended for use as a



                25    single-family home and has been designed as such.
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                 1    Furthermore, the home design is compliant with



                 2    all other aspects of the ordinance."



                 3             Criteria F:  The fact that property may



                 4    be utilized more profitably should a variance be



                 5    granted may not be considered grounds for a



                 6    variance.



                 7             The BZA may not consider profitability



                 8    when considering this variance request.



                 9             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                10    "There would be no increase in value to the



                11    property as a direct result of this variance.



                12    The home is similar in size and caliber of all



                13    the adjacent properties."



                14             Criteria G:  The need for this variance



                15    shall not be the result of the applicant's own



                16    actions.



                17             The need for the variance may be the



                18    result of the applicant's own actions.  The



                19    property was acquired prior to the expiration of



                20    the 2013 ARDA in December of 2023.



                21             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                22    "The variance request is in advance of any



                23    physical improvement and not the result of



                24    actions taken."



                25             Criteria H:  Granting this variance will
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                 1    not be contrary to the public or neighborhood



                 2    interest nor will not adversely affect other



                 3    properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with



                 4    the harmony, spirit, intent and purposes of these



                 5    regulations.



                 6             Granting of this variance may not be



                 7    contrary to the public or neighborhood interest,



                 8    may not adversely affect other property in the



                 9    vicinity nor interfere with the harmony, spirit,



                10    intent or purposes of these regulations.



                11             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                12    "The variance would allow for a design that is



                13    entirely in keeping with the spirit and intent of



                14    the regulations under which the neighborhood was



                15    developed.  Furthermore, sustaining and



                16    nourishing the grand oak is for the benefit of



                17    the greater good."



                18             And Criteria I:  Granting of the



                19    variance does not substantially conflict with the



                20    comprehensive plan or the purposes of this



                21    ordinance.



                22             Granting of this variance may not



                23    substantially conflict with the comprehensive



                24    plan or the purposes of this ordinance.  The Town



                25    of Kiawah Island's Comprehensive Plan, Housing
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                 1    Element Goal I, Implementation Strategy A states,



                 2    "Provide mechanisms to permit flexibility and



                 3    innovation in residential project design to



                 4    promote land use efficiency and environmental



                 5    protection."



                 6             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 7    "The variance allows for a design that is in



                 8    concert with the comprehensive plan and the



                 9    design for this area of Kiawah, Marsh Walk."



                10             The Board of Zoning Appeals may approve,



                11    approve with conditions, or deny Case No. BZA



                12    25-000002.  Again, this is a variance request for



                13    the reduction of the required 15-foot side



                14    setback by approximately 488 square feet for a



                15    new single family home.  Should the Board of



                16    Zoning Appeals consider approval of this variance



                17    request, planning staff requests the following



                18    conditions for approval, and that is the



                19    applicant shall revise all plans and exhibits



                20    submitted to Town to reflect the new 15-foot side



                21    setback.  This concludes staff's review.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Dan.



                23    Questions from the Board for Dan?



                24                  MR. LEWIS:  I have one.  Dan, when



                25    you talk about Criteria G, you say that they

�

                                                                      21







                 1    shall not be the result of the applicant's own



                 2    actions.  Your response is that it might be as a



                 3    result of their actions.  Can you go a little bit



                 4    deeper on that?



                 5                  MR. VINCENT:  Sure.  So staff



                 6    considered, knowing that the ARDA was expiring in



                 7    2023, the purchaser of the property knew the



                 8    expiration, or the staff assumed that they knew



                 9    the expiration and therefore knew that the



                10    setbacks were being adjusted in December of 2023.



                11                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.



                12                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for



                13    Dan.



                14                  MR. FARABEE:  Yes.  They weren't



                15    grandfathered, were they?



                16                  MR. VINCENT:  No property was



                17    grandfathered unless a zoning permit was given



                18    prior to that expiration.  There was no permit,



                19    no zoning permit issued for this property before



                20    that.



                21                  MR. LEWIS:  So it expired and



                22    rolled back to the other setbacks we have.



                23                  MR. VINCENT:  Correct.



                24                  MR. FARABEE:  I have a question for



                25    Item F where it says that there will be no
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                 1    increase in value of the property as a direct



                 2    result of the variance.  I know those aren't your



                 3    words, but you put them in your write-up, and it



                 4    would seem to me that there is an increase in



                 5    value if they've got a bigger house sitting on



                 6    that property if we grant the variance, so I



                 7    guess it is going to increase the value.



                 8                  MR. VINCENT:  Staff saw that most



                 9    houses in the neighborhood are of similar size,



                10    and so based on that, based on the plans that



                11    they drew up when they bought the house, we



                12    considered profitability was not a consideration.



                13                  MR. FARABEE:  You're saying the



                14    plan was drawn up when?



                15                  MR. VINCENT:  We would assume prior



                16    to that expiration of the development agreement.



                17                  MR. FARABEE:  But there's no



                18    permits or anything issued, were there?



                19                  MR. VINCENT:  Correct.



                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Dan, somewhere in



                21    here it says that at its furthest point the



                22    incursion is 6 plus feet.  That means, I think,



                23    it goes beyond even the 10-foot, correct?



                24                  MR. VINCENT:  That's correct.  So



                25    prior to that ARDA expiration they were at
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                 1    10-feet setbacks, and after that expiration it's



                 2    at 15, so you're correct, that 16 -- that 6 foot



                 3    is even more than that 5-foot change.



                 4                  MR. HANAN:  So they didn't meet the



                 5    requirements prior to the change.



                 6                  MR. VINCENT:  Correct.  They would



                 7    have to get a variance -- they would have to seek



                 8    a variance anyway.



                 9                  MS. O'LEARY:  And then the other



                10    question is on B it says, these conditions do not



                11    generally apply to other properties in the



                12    vicinity, and we're talking about the large tree;



                13    or the one above it, extraordinary exceptional



                14    conditions pertaining to this particular piece of



                15    property.  There's a ton of properties out there



                16    with grand oaks that people had to work within



                17    the variances; is that correct?



                18                  MR. VINCENT:  I'll let the



                19    applicant talk about that if they so choose, but



                20    staff noticed the big tree and not a lot of



                21    properties on staff's site visit had a lot of



                22    trees in the vicinity.



                23                  MS. O'LEARY:  Okay.



                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Anything else for



                25    Dan?
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                 1             Okay.  Thank you, Dan.  Who's speaking



                 2    for the applicant?



                 3                  MS. WILSON:  Hi.  I'm Heather



                 4    Wilson.  I'm here for the applicant.  So to



                 5    address a couple -- I'll just start my thoughts,



                 6    and then I can address a few points or questions.



                 7    The real issue is the tree, which is central to



                 8    the lot.  When we were looking at designs early



                 9    on and were staking them, we thought that the



                10    house could work under the canopy, but in looking



                11    at the stake on site that has a great deal of



                12    topography as well as this grand oak tree, it



                13    became clear that we were going to have to remove



                14    too many limbs, so we went to --



                15             I don't know if we can -- can we change



                16    what's -- if we can look at the site plan that



                17    shows the actual limb survey that -- yes, that



                18    one with the red.  You can see we have the actual



                19    limbs, the height of the limbs, and that's from



                20    sea level; so those look like 20, but when the



                21    grade is at 10, they're quite low.  So the issue



                22    became that from the whole center of the lot, the



                23    center third of the buildable lot, can only be



                24    one story.



                25             And so looking at different ways to
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                 1    approach this from a design perspective, we



                 2    actually decided to keep the whole rear of the



                 3    marsh side of the property one story so -- in



                 4    order to avoid having two sets of stairs, like



                 5    you have to go down to one story and then pop



                 6    back up to two stories, and the front of the



                 7    house is the only two-story piece.  So that's



                 8    really what drove the sort of expansion of the



                 9    footprint and how much is one story.



                10             The buildable or the allowable size of



                11    the house is not larger than anything else out



                12    there.  It would be -- it's just that it's spread



                13    out mostly on one story.  There are three small



                14    guest bedrooms on the second floor.  So that's



                15    really the driver for this.



                16             I think that one thing else I would like



                17    to talk about with regard to trees is in the



                18    front left corner there's another large live oak



                19    that is blocking access under the house; and then



                20    to the right, as you look at the front of the



                21    house, is the transformer as well as a grove of



                22    smaller trees that we're trying to preserve.  And



                23    what that means is that the only place to



                24    accommodate parking is underneath that small



                25    porch in the central section of the house, so
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                 1    that's the only place that cars can get in and



                 2    under the house for parking.  So that's another



                 3    sort of nuance to the tree protection that's



                 4    happening with this -- with the programming of



                 5    this property.



                 6             With regards to the noncompliance beyond



                 7    the 10-feet, it's only the two chimneys which



                 8    would easily be moved within the 10-foot setback.



                 9    The real issue is the size of the house that is



                10    across -- you know, across the 10, between the 10



                11    and 15.



                12             I think that in terms of the greater



                13    good, it really is actually nice that the first



                14    story with the one-story elements go all the way



                15    to the path along the marsh.  There's so many



                16    tall houses along there as you walk that path.



                17    Most of them are two stories on the back, and



                18    this is one story, which I think is a benefit



                19    to -- a net benefit to the public and to the



                20    path, in addition to accommodating the canopy of



                21    that tree.



                22             You see so many trees that, while the



                23    houses protect the root zone, they don't protect



                24    the canopies, and so these canopies are destroyed



                25    in order to accommodate the vertical nature of a
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                 1    lot of homes out there; and we went to a lot of



                 2    effort and thought to really protect all of those



                 3    significant limbs that come across the middle



                 4    third of the property.



                 5             I think that is it, other than, in



                 6    response, I'm happy to open questions, but I



                 7    really don't believe this is any effort to expand



                 8    the size or value of the house.  It really is



                 9    just in accommodating the natural environment and



                10    site with the topography and the true form and



                11    natural form of the tree.



                12                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you,



                13    Ms. Wilson.



                14             Questions for Ms. Wilson?



                15                  MR. LEWIS:  So the way, if I'm



                16    looking at the proposed site plan, west is at the



                17    top and east is at the bottom?



                18                  MS. WILSON:  Sort of, yes.  It's



                19    north -- or southwest is at the top.



                20                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.



                21                  MS. WILSON:  It's not quite.



                22                  MR. FARABEE:  Did the ARB tell you



                23    you couldn't cut down any of those trees?



                24                  MS. WILSON:  Maybe -- Jenn's here.



                25    We -- I don't remember if that directive came
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                 1    from you or -- yes?  Okay.  Yes.



                 2                  MR. FARABEE:  Who else would it



                 3    come from if it didn't come from the ARB?



                 4                  MS. WILSON:  Well, I mean, the



                 5    effort to preserve it is also a choice, and we



                 6    were trying to do the right thing for the lot.



                 7                  MR. FARABEE:  So what efforts did



                 8    you do to downsize it so you wouldn't encroach on



                 9    the trees as well as -- I understand the one in



                10    the middle there, but also keep it within the



                11    setbacks.



                12                  MS. WILSON:  Well, because the --



                13    from -- the first small L shape is the only



                14    two-story piece of the plan, so the reason -- the



                15    downsize is to not have any heated space above



                16    the middle and rear section of the house so that



                17    the canopy could continue to expand, not have to



                18    cut any of the -- these are all leader limbs that



                19    we surveyed, so the canopy expands far beyond



                20    that, but those are the significant and important



                21    limbs that are in the center of the property.  So



                22    it's really about bringing down the ridge height



                23    at the rear.



                24                  MR. FARABEE:  I don't understand



                25    how making it bigger helps you there.
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                 1                  MS. WILSON:  Well, if you just --



                 2    most of the houses there and what we're allowed



                 3    to build is, you know, 38 to 4,200 square feet,



                 4    and so if you can't put it on the second floor,



                 5    we're doing it mostly on the first floor.  We



                 6    haven't made the house bigger.  We've just made



                 7    it more one story.



                 8                  MR. FARABEE:  There's a lot of lots



                 9    this house will fit, and you're saying you've got



                10    a lot that this house won't fit on.



                11                  MS. WILSON:  It would fit on most



                12    lots in Marsh Walk, is that what you mean, just



                13    without that tree.  If that tree wasn't there, we



                14    could compress the side to side.



                15                  MR. FARABEE:  If the sun wasn't



                16    there, it would be cloudy all day too.  I'm just



                17    saying, though, my question is what efforts have



                18    you made to make the house fit the conditions of



                19    the lot.



                20                  MS. WILSON:  Well, I guess in my



                21    opinion the shape of the footprint is fitting the



                22    conditions of the lot, which is why I'm here to



                23    ask for relief from the setback in order to do



                24    this approach.



                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  To ask Ben's question
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                 1    another way, I understand you can't get to 39.55



                 2    percent lot coverage without this variance, but



                 3    you could get to 35 percent or so by lopping off



                 4    those colored portions.



                 5                  MS. WILSON:  Well, the lot coverage



                 6    is one calculation, but it would also render --



                 7    without this additional setback, it would render



                 8    a house smaller than most in the area.



                 9                  MS. O'LEARY:  Is this your first



                10    rendition of this that you guys have done for the



                11    homeowner or this property, the first rendition



                12    design?



                13                  MS. WILSON:  No, second.



                14                  MS. O'LEARY:  This is the second?



                15    Because I guess my question is, they came and



                16    they bought the property.  They knew the tree was



                17    there.  They knew there were limitations.  But



                18    yet, here we are looking for a variance of a



                19    house that doesn't really fit on the lot.



                20                  MR. HANAN:  And it didn't even meet



                21    the requirements prior to the changes that were



                22    made to the ordinance.



                23                  MS. WILSON:  Well, with the



                24    exception of the chimney, which I said I can



                25    retract that request with -- it did -- it is
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                 1    compliant with the rest of the neighborhood aside



                 2    from chimney.  Many of the houses are to 8 foot



                 3    setback and 10, between 8 and 10, and this is one



                 4    of the last few that has not been developed, so



                 5    it's -- it would be held to an entirely different



                 6    standard from, you know, 95 percent of the lots



                 7    out there.



                 8                  MR. LEWIS:  But the standards have



                 9    changed.



                10                  MS. WILSON:  Correct.  I know, I'm



                11    just...



                12                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for



                13    Ms. Wilson?



                14             Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.



                15             I'll ask if there are any members of the



                16    public who would like to speak to this?



                17             Yes, sir.



                18                  MR. FOLDS:  Thanks for having me.



                19    I'm Jim Folds.  I'm the owner of 219 High Dunes



                20    Lane and just wanted to express, there's been



                21    a -- seems to be a tone that we're trying to



                22    build an unreasonably large house.  We were



                23    surprised, we've all been surprised -- not all of



                24    us, but a lot of folks were surprised, after the



                25    building permit application, that the -- we
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                 1    learned of the 15-foot setback.  When we



                 2    purchased this property, all the marketing



                 3    material, all the expectations, in fact, there



                 4    was a pre-approved plan on this lot within the



                 5    footprint that we're building showing 10 feet.



                 6             So the assumption offered was that maybe



                 7    we knew about this and we're trying to skirt it.



                 8    Just wanted to offer, that's not the case.  We've



                 9    learned, as we've gone through quite a bit of



                10    time, spent quite a bit of money and effort to



                11    try to come up with a plan that works with this



                12    big tree and the lot and consistent with



                13    everything else there -- out there, and that's



                14    been our desire.



                15             So I think that to the question around



                16    the increasing the profitability or some sort of



                17    gain or benefit should this be allowed, I would



                18    offer a corollary.  If it's not, there's a



                19    substantial devalue.  Take 10 feet out of the



                20    width of this plan and retain the tree and then



                21    try to work around that, I think that's a -- you



                22    know, given the cost and the effort out there,



                23    I'm not sure how viable it, frankly, would be.



                24             So I just wanted to offer a perspective



                25    of the owner and happy to answer any questions
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                 1    around that but wanted to -- given some



                 2    assumptions and suggestions, just wanted to



                 3    clarify where that comes from.



                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.



                 5             Other comments from members of the



                 6    public?



                 7             Yes, ma'am.



                 8                  MS. HAYES:  Thank you.  I'm



                 9    Jennifer Hayes.  I'm here on behalf of the



                10    architectural review board.  I've been involved



                11    in reviewing the plans and, you know, started



                12    with the original site analysis with Heather and



                13    her design team two -- two plus years ago, and



                14    I'm here to speak in support of the variance



                15    request for 219 High Dunes.  The ARB did approve



                16    the proposed variances during the review process



                17    for this home, and we believe there are



                18    extraordinary circumstances that support the



                19    variance requests.



                20             The first item, I think, for you to



                21    consider is that the plan is in keeping with



                22    other neighborhood homes and developments.  The



                23    variance request would not be perceivable to



                24    others, since all of the homes along the street



                25    have been developed in a similar manner.
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                 1             As part of that and to support the



                 2    reasoning and to answer the question about



                 3    potential increase in value, there is -- there is



                 4    not, I don't believe, an increase in value if



                 5    these variances were approved.  The house is not



                 6    larger than others within the neighborhood.  It



                 7    is simply, you know, shortened and a little bit



                 8    more spread out, all in support of a unique site



                 9    development for this property, which is exactly



                10    the thing that makes Kiawah unique and that the



                11    architectural review board looks for with



                12    designs.



                13             And then that brings me to the second



                14    and most important consideration, and that is



                15    with preservation of the 35-inch live oak.  The



                16    tree is located in such a place within the



                17    central area of the buildable area and it's



                18    canopy takes up such a lot of space that it is



                19    very difficult to design around; and while there



                20    are a number of properties with grand live oaks



                21    in Ocean Park, most of them are not of this size.



                22    Most of them are around 25,000 or greater, and



                23    some much greater, square feet.  This one is



                24    under 12,000 square feet, so there is nowhere



                25    else for it to go.
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                 1             The proposed house has been designed



                 2    around the tree, preserving not only what we



                 3    sometimes see, which is the trunk and where it's



                 4    located, but also the branching of that tree and



                 5    the root zone, which really ensures that the tree



                 6    will be an asset to the lot and to the



                 7    neighborhood for years to come.



                 8             Having been to the site numerous times,



                 9    you know, I would just put in a final plug that



                10    the tree really is grand in all senses of the



                11    word, and I would hope that you would support the



                12    variance request as proposed.  Thank you.



                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.



                14             Other comments?



                15             Okay.  Ms. Wilson, is there anything you



                16    want to add.



                17                  MS. WILSON:  No, sir.



                18                  MR. LEWIS:  So we had two letters



                19    opposed but those folks could not make the



                20    meeting?



                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  We actually have



                22    three letters opposing, I believe, including the



                23    one that came in this morning.



                24                  MS. O'LEARY:  That's for 129.



                25    That's the other one.  There's only two.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  That's the other one?



                 2    Sorry.  Two letters opposing.



                 3                  MR. LEWIS:  But, Dan, they couldn't



                 4    be here today?



                 5                  MR. VINCENT:  I don't believe so,



                 6    hm-mm.



                 7                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.



                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  All right.  With that



                 9    I'll entertain any motions that any member of the



                10    board would like to make.



                11                  MS. O'LEARY:  I make a motion to



                12    deny the variance.



                13                  MR. HANAN:  I'll second it.



                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  There's been a motion



                15    to deny the variance request and a second.  Any



                16    further discussion?



                17                  MR. FARABEE:  I'd just like to



                18    comment that I understand the desire to save the



                19    tree, and on my lot we did exactly the same



                20    thing; but also we had to keep within the



                21    restrictions that we had incurred there, and we



                22    decided, okay, we'll just shape the house to fit



                23    the lot, and we did that.  And I think -- I think



                24    that's the natural thing to do, as opposed to



                25    keep saying, we're going to make a bigger house
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                 1    on a smaller lot.  And I just think that the



                 2    tree's going to survive eventually, no matter



                 3    what we do; and so I think I'm going to -- I'm



                 4    going to reject as well.



                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any further



                 6    discussion?



                 7             All right.  We'll take a vote then.



                 8    Ben -- a vote yes is a vote to deny the variance



                 9    request.



                10                  MR. FARABEE:  I vote a yes to deny



                11    it.



                12                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes.  Jay?



                13                  MR. LEWIS:  Yes.



                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  Morris?



                15                  MR. HANAN:  Yes.



                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Lin?



                17                  MS. O'LEARY:  Yes.  But I've been



                18    asked to just make sure that I'm saying I want to



                19    deny it for Section G and Section A.  Those are



                20    the reasons that I had asked for it to be denied,



                21    so yes, denied.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Good clarification.



                23    Thank you, Lin.



                24             Thank you, Daniel.



                25             And Frank, yes.
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                 1             So it's unanimous, we're going to deny



                 2    this request for the application based on



                 3    Criteria A and G, primarily because the applicant



                 4    has failed to demonstrate that there are



                 5    sufficiently extraordinary circumstances to



                 6    warrant this grant.  So thank you.



                 7             And we'll proceed now to the next



                 8    request, which is case BZA 25-000003 at 129 Blue



                 9    Heron Pond Road.



                10             Okay, Dan, you're up.



                11                  MR. VINCENT:  Thanks, Frank.  Our



                12    next and final case being presented today is Case



                13    No. BZA 25-000003, located at 129 Blue Heron Pond



                14    Road.  The applicant and property owner, GSB



                15    Holdings, LLC, being represented by Leo Lorenzo



                16    of Camens Architectural Group, is requesting a



                17    variance for the reduction of the required



                18    20-foot side setback and required 20-foot rear



                19    critical area line setback for approximately 208



                20    square feet for a proposed new single-family



                21    home.  The TMS for the subject property is



                22    265-02-00-085.  The subject property is located



                23    within the R-1 residential zoning district.  The



                24    subject property is currently undeveloped.



                25             The lot size is approximately 18,178
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                 1    square feet in size.  15,025 square feet consists



                 2    of highlands, and the remaining 3,153 square feet



                 3    consists of marshlands.  The Town of Kiawah



                 4    Island's Land Use Planning and Zoning Ordinance



                 5    requires a front setback of 30 feet, 20-foot side



                 6    setbacks and a 20-foot rear setback along the



                 7    South Carolina Department of Environmental



                 8    Services Bureau of Coastal Management critical



                 9    area line setback, or SCDES BCM for short.



                10             The subject property has a maximum



                11    allowable lot coverage of 33 percent.  The



                12    proposed lot coverage is approximately 33.99



                13    percent.  The proposed lot coverage includes



                14    approximately 4,957 square feet or 32.99 percent



                15    of impervious materials and approximately 162



                16    square feet or 1 percent of pervious walks.  In



                17    accordance with Section 12-63 of the Land Use



                18    Planning and Zoning Ordinance of the Town of



                19    Kiawah Island, the subject property has an



                20    allowable increase as a percentage of the maximum



                21    lot coverage of up to 20 percent for qualifying



                22    items such as pervious walks and patios.  An



                23    SCDES BCM critical line is also present on the



                24    property as indicated by a survey certified by



                25    the SCDES BCM line dated August 31st, 2020.
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                 1    Furthermore, a 15-foot stormwater buffer is



                 2    located from the 25-foot rear SCDES BCM critical



                 3    line setback.



                 4             Per Charleston County records, the home



                 5    was recently acquired by GSB Holdings, LLC, on



                 6    January 13th, 2025.



                 7             Here is a zoning aerial view of the



                 8    subject property (indicating).



                 9             Here is a Charleston County GIS aerial



                10    view (indicating).



                11             Let the record show that we have



                12    received three public comments for this variance



                13    request.  Here are the locations of where the



                14    letters have come from (indicating).  We have



                15    received two letters from 146 Blue Heron Pond



                16    Road, which was actually outside the 500-foot



                17    radius of notifications, as well as one comment



                18    that we received this morning at 121 Blue Heron



                19    Pond Road.



                20             A site visit was conducted on February



                21    7th, 2025, and staff has taken a few pictures.



                22    On this picture to the left on the slide shown,



                23    this is the leisure trail located west of the



                24    subject property (indicating).



                25             The proposed plans include a new
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                 1    single-family home.  The proposed single-family



                 2    residence encroaches into the 20-foot side



                 3    setback by approximately 4 feet.  That is the



                 4    area to the left on this slide here in the black



                 5    bubble (indicating).



                 6             The total encroachment into the side



                 7    setback is approximately 206 square feet.



                 8    Additionally, a small portion of the proposed



                 9    pool encroaches into the required rear SCDES BCM



                10    critical line 20-foot setback by approximately 1



                11    foot, 1 inch, for a total encroachment of 2



                12    square feet, and that is that bubble to the north



                13    of the property (indicating).



                14             The applicant has submitted to the



                15    Kiawah Island Architectural Review Board for a



                16    variance review and for final review and was



                17    granted approval, respectively, on January 17th,



                18    2025 and January 25th, 2025.



                19             We'll move on to the variance criteria.



                20    Criteria A:  There are extraordinary and



                21    exceptional conditions pertaining to the



                22    particular piece of property.



                23             There may be extraordinary and



                24    exceptional conditions on this property.  The



                25    subject property is uniquely pie-shaped and sits
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                 1    adjacent to critical area to the north and



                 2    northeast.



                 3             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 4    "The rear and side critical line with the 20-foot



                 5    setback extends substantially into the property



                 6    making the design of a home difficult."



                 7             Criteria B:  These conditions may be



                 8    unique to the subject property and may not



                 9    generally apply to other properties in the



                10    vicinity.



                11             The property is located in the R-1



                12    residential zoning district.  Adjacent properties



                13    along Blue Heron Pond Road are also located in



                14    the R-1 residential zoning district.  This lot



                15    sits adjacent to critical area to the north.



                16    There is an open space area containing a leisure



                17    trail to the west of the subject property which



                18    is located in the parks and recreation zoning



                19    district.  Existing structures in the vicinity



                20    may have similar encroachments based on the



                21    current setback standards.



                22             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                23    "We are not aware of a similar condition in the



                24    immediate area.  This condition would only apply



                25    to other properties in the vicinity which the
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                 1    critical line and setback extends so far into the



                 2    property."



                 3             Criteria C:  Because of these



                 4    conditions, the application of this ordinance to



                 5    the particular piece of property would



                 6    effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the



                 7    utilization of the property.



                 8             The application of this ordinance to the



                 9    subject property may not prohibit or unreasonably



                10    restrict the utilization of the property.



                11             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                12    "A hardship is present when the rear and side of



                13    the property has a critical and setback line



                14    extending into the property."



                15             Criteria D:  The authorization of the



                16    variance will not be of substantial detriment to



                17    adjacent property or to the public good and the



                18    character of the zoning district will not be



                19    harmed by the granting of the variance.



                20             The authorization of this variance may



                21    not be of substantial detriment to the adjacent



                22    properties or the public good.  There is a



                23    leisure trail located west of the subject



                24    property which allows for a greater buffer



                25    between neighboring properties.
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                 1             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 2    "The portion that is encroaching into the side



                 3    setback is only visible from the Kiawah Island



                 4    leisure trail.  There is natural vegetation and



                 5    will be added vegetation between the portion of



                 6    the home and the side property line."



                 7             Criteria E:  The Board of Zoning Appeals



                 8    shall not grant a variance the effect of which



                 9    would be to allow the establishment of a use not



                10    otherwise permitted in a zoning district, to



                11    extend physically a nonconforming use of land or



                12    to change the zoning district boundaries shown on



                13    the official zoning map.



                14             Granting of this variance would not



                15    allow the establishment of a use not otherwise



                16    permitted in the zoning district, extend



                17    physically a nonconforming use of land or change



                18    the zoning district boundaries.



                19             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                20    "The property is zoned and intended for use as a



                21    single-family home and has been designed as such.



                22    Furthermore, the home design is compliant with



                23    all other aspects of the ordinance."



                24             Criteria F:  The fact that property may



                25    be utilized more profitably should a variance be

�

                                                                      45







                 1    granted may not be considered grounds for a



                 2    variance.



                 3             The BZA may not consider profitability



                 4    when considering this variance request.



                 5             Criteria G:  The need for this variance



                 6    shall not be the result of the applicant's own



                 7    actions.



                 8             The need for the variance may not be the



                 9    result of the applicant's own actions.



                10             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                11    "The need for the variance was due to the result



                12    in the ARB asking that the house to be into the



                13    side setback for design criteria and



                14    functionality, not a request by the owner [sic]."



                15             Criteria H:  Granting the variance will



                16    not be contrary to the public or neighborhood



                17    interest nor will not adversely affect other



                18    properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with



                19    the harmony, spirit, intent and purposes of these



                20    regulations.



                21             Granting of this variance may not be



                22    contrary to the public or neighborhood interest,



                23    may not adversely affect other property in the



                24    vicinity, nor interfere with the harmony, spirit,



                25    intent and purposes of these regulations.
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                 1             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                 2    "This property has no neighboring homes.  One



                 3    side is the marsh and the other side is the



                 4    trail."



                 5             And Criteria I:  Granting of the



                 6    variance does not substantially conflict with the



                 7    comprehensive plan or the purposes of this



                 8    ordinance.



                 9             Granting of the variance may not



                10    substantially conflict with the comprehensive



                11    plan or the purposes of this ordinance.



                12             Per the applicant's letter of intent:



                13    "Granting this variance we believe will not



                14    conflict with the comprehensive plan or the



                15    purposes of the ordinance due to the shifting of



                16    this home into the side setback to allow for a



                17    better design and functionality of a very



                18    difficult lot to put a desirable home on."



                19             The Board of Zoning Appeals may approve,



                20    approve with conditions or deny Case No.



                21    BZA25-000003 at 129 Blue Heron Pond Road, and



                22    again, this is a variance request for the



                23    reduction of the required 20-foot side setback



                24    and required 20-foot rear critical line setback



                25    by approximately 208 square feet.  This concludes
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                 1    staff's review.



                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Dan.



                 3    Questions for Dan?



                 4                  MR. FARABEE:  Dan, can you give us



                 5    a timeline of ownership on this and the



                 6    applications and who's doing what on this?  It's



                 7    just kind of confusing because it was resold on



                 8    the 13th.  Obviously you can't design this house



                 9    in 30 days and get it approved by ARB, I don't



                10    think, so could you kind of give us the trail of



                11    who did what?



                12                  MR. VINCENT:  I'll give you a



                13    timeline from staff's perspective, and then we'll



                14    refer to the applicant for his timeline.  When



                15    staff was doing their staff review, we noticed on



                16    Charleston County records, the last record of the



                17    property, sold record of the property, was back



                18    in January of 2021.  We received a letter a



                19    couple days after posting the materials from a



                20    neighbor who notified us of a new deed that was



                21    dated January 13th, 2025, which was not updated



                22    in the county's records.  So staff was mistaken



                23    in that the property was acquired in 2021.



                24    Substantially, we fixed our staff review.  In



                25    terms of design, I'll leave that up to the

�

                                                                      48







                 1    applicant, but they did apply for the variance in



                 2    January of 2025, if that helps.



                 3                  MS. O'LEARY:  So somebody bought it



                 4    in 2021 and sold it, am I understanding this



                 5    correctly, and then 30 days later it's coming to



                 6    us for a variance, so it's a new purchase,



                 7    purchase of the lot with the plans, is that --



                 8                  MR. VINCENT:  I'll defer to the



                 9    applicant on that.



                10                  MS. O'LEARY:  Okay.



                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Dan, you sent us some



                12    material on a restrictions and covenants of The



                13    Preserve.  Am I correct that those restrictions



                14    and covenants are enforced by the ARB.



                15                  MR. VINCENT:  That is correct.  We,



                16    as a town, do not enforce covenants or



                17    restrictions.  We do require the property owner



                18    to submit an affidavit, signed affidavit; that



                19    affidavit states they understand and abide by the



                20    covenants and restrictions.



                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for



                22    Dan?



                23             Okay.  Thank you, Dan.



                24             We'll hear from the applicant now.



                25                  MR. LORENZO:  Thank you.  Good
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                 1    afternoon.  I'm Leo Lorenzo with Camens



                 2    Architectural Group, representing our firm and



                 3    the applicant.  To answer your question regarding



                 4    the timeline on this, this has been a project



                 5    that's been in the works for quite a while.  We



                 6    originally had an owner that was going to build a



                 7    spec house on this property.  We started with him



                 8    around two years ago.  We designed several



                 9    renditions for this property, went back and forth



                10    with the ARB several times to get a design that



                11    was acceptable with the ARB.  But since then,



                12    unfortunately, the owner that we originally



                13    designed the house for, his company unfortunately



                14    folded, and somebody else bought the property



                15    knowing -- with the plans that was already



                16    approved from the ARB back in January.  Then



                17    that's when we are coming to you-all for the



                18    variance on the side setback.  I hope that



                19    answers the question of timeline.



                20                  MR. FARABEE:  The current owner is



                21    GSB Holdings?



                22                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes, sir.



                23                  MR. FARABEE:  In the write-up it



                24    said that the owner is 129 Blue Heron Pond, LLC.



                25                  MR. LORENZO:  That I am not sure
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                 1    about.  I would have to get clarification from



                 2    that -- on that.



                 3                  MR. VINCENT:  So that 129 Blue



                 4    Heron Pond, LLC, that was the previous owner back



                 5    in 2021.



                 6                  MR. FARABEE:  Oh, the one who



                 7    folded.



                 8                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes.



                 9                  MR. VINCENT:  Yes.  We'll correct



                10    that.



                11                  MR. LORENZO:  I apologize.  I



                12    didn't know it by the company name.  I only knew



                13    it by the gentleman's name.



                14                  MR. FARABEE:  Well, is GSB Holdings



                15    the current owner?



                16                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes, sir.



                17                  MR. FARABEE:  And they intend to



                18    build this house but not live in it; is that what



                19    you're telling me?



                20                  MR. LORENZO:  Correct.



                21                  MR. FARABEE:  They're going to sell



                22    it off.  So you're building a spec house.



                23                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes, sir.



                24                  MR. LEWIS:  When I put the address



                25    into my browser in realtor.com, it comes up with
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                 1    a house already there, 20 pictures, a price.



                 2                  MR. LORENZO:  I assure you there's



                 3    no house there.



                 4                  MR. FARABEE:  I know.  Whether it's



                 5    a coincidence, whatever, it shows the square



                 6    footage, price, it shows 3,990 square feet, four



                 7    bedroom, four bath -- four and a half bath.



                 8                  MR. LORENZO:  The only thing I can



                 9    think is that they put some marketing material



                10    together to try to sell it.



                11                  MR. LEWIS:  They're good pictures.



                12                  MR. LORENZO:  We did some



                13    renderings of the house and that, you know,



                14    outside, so I'm assuming that's what they put on



                15    there; yes, but the house is not built.



                16                  MR. HANAN:  (Inaudible.)



                17                  MR. LORENZO:  There were a lot of



                18    other renditions.  We originally designed the



                19    house as a smaller house, smaller to fit within



                20    the setbacks, and we had it as a front-loading



                21    house, you know, for the garage.  And what -- you



                22    know, then the ARB, what they required was for us



                23    to try to switch it to a side-loading garage and



                24    not have the garage on the front elevation of the



                25    house.  So that's why, when we went through that,
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                 1    and also to get the single car parking there, you



                 2    know, we could only get the single car versus the



                 3    required two car parking off street; but when we



                 4    switched the garage to the side versus the front,



                 5    that's when we went to the ARB and they, you



                 6    know, said, well, we'll go into the side setback



                 7    to accomplish the side loading garage.



                 8                  MR. FARABEE:  Is the ARB going to



                 9    talk about this one?



                10                  MS. HAYES:  Not in that much



                11    detail.



                12                  MR. FARABEE:  Okay.  Maybe when



                13    he's done I have a question for you.



                14                  MS. O'LEARY:  Leo, the other



                15    setback, as small as it is, that pool is setting



                16    back into the marsh water.



                17                  MR. LORENZO:  I looked back -- I



                18    looked at that.  We can pull that pool in.



                19                  MS. O'LEARY:  That's a really



                20    tenuous marsh back there in back of the house,



                21    and even the side of the house.  You know,



                22    they're redoing that whole Killdeer Pond Trail



                23    because it's a mess because the water goes over



                24    that bridge when we have any type of heavy rain,



                25    so that's a definite concern.
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                 1                  MR. LORENZO:  So, yes, but the



                 2    pool, that can be pulled back even 2 feet to be



                 3    within the setback.



                 4                  MS. O'LEARY:  And there wasn't any



                 5    way to slide the house to go back to make it more



                 6    narrow so that you're not needing the other



                 7    variance for the side of the house, I mean --



                 8    because you've already -- you already did some



                 9    with a smaller home, and it was still within the



                10    requirements of The Preserve but then to make --



                11    this is all because you had to accommodate the



                12    parking on the side?



                13                  MR. LORENZO:  Well, and also to be



                14    able to swing into a side-entry garage.



                15                  MR. HANAN:  But you do have



                16    drawings that do meet the requirements of that



                17    lot.



                18                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes.  They're very



                19    old renditions, yes, but like I said, it has a



                20    front-loading garage on those.



                21                  MR. HANAN:  I understand.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Are you familiar with



                23    Ms. McIlvain's comments?



                24                  MR. LORENZO:  Yes, I did see them.



                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  She makes a point
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                 1    about clear-cutting which I couldn't quite get.



                 2    Can you comment on that?



                 3                  MR. LORENZO:  I don't know if she



                 4    meant, you know, the clear-cutting down along the



                 5    trail, but our landscape plan shows that we are



                 6    going to leave the existing vegetation along



                 7    there and then also add any additional vegetation



                 8    for screening on that side of the house as well.



                 9                  MS. O'LEARY:  The other comment,



                10    Leo, was that it had said that there were no



                11    neighbors to the west because that was the trail,



                12    but there's actually a neighbor on the other side



                13    of the trail.



                14                  MR. LORENZO:  There is, but normal



                15    circumstances, when you have obviously two lots



                16    next to each other, the homes are roughly 40 to



                17    45 feet apart; but with the addition of the



                18    leisure trail, I put a scale on it, and we're



                19    probably about 75 feet between homes.



                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for



                21    Mr. Lorenzo?



                22             Okay.  Thank you, sir.



                23                  MR. LORENZO:  Thank you.



                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  I'd ask if there are



                25    any members of the public who would like to speak
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                 1    to this.



                 2                  MR. FARABEE:  Excuse me.  First I



                 3    have a question of the Architectural Review



                 4    Board.



                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.  Could you step



                 6    up for a second, and then we'll get to your



                 7    comments.  I apologize.



                 8             Go ahead, Ben.



                 9                  MR. FARABEE:  There's a statement



                10    there that the owner makes that the need for the



                11    variance was due to the result in the ARB asking



                12    that the house be used -- that the house be into



                13    the side setback for design criteria and



                14    functionality, not a request by the owner.  Is



                15    that a typical effort of the ARB?



                16                  MS. HAYES:  I -- that's a large



                17    question.  What I can do is speak to this



                18    submittal which, you know, there was a reference



                19    to the covenants and restrictions for The



                20    Preserve, which the ARB upholds, and those do



                21    represent that there is a preservation zone at



                22    the front of the property, as well as a selective



                23    clearing zone at the rear of the property and a



                24    stormwater filter buffer along that critical



                25    line.  So I don't recall, personally, having seen
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                 1    a front-loaded garage for this property, but I do



                 2    imagine, if we had seen that, we would have said,



                 3    it is not compatible with the covenants and



                 4    restrictions and preservation of all the material



                 5    within that front preservation zone.



                 6             What I also recall is that -- so if you



                 7    cannot have paving, you know, that is 40 feet



                 8    wide at the front of the house, then you by



                 9    default have to come in from the side.  You



                10    cannot come in from the leisure trail side, so



                11    that leaves only one other place to come in with



                12    your driveway and your garaging.  What I do



                13    recall from the review is that the guest parking



                14    and the paving in some previous submittals was



                15    originally within the critical line buffer area,



                16    which to us is a much more sensitive area than an



                17    area of narrow width along the side setback and



                18    the leisure trail which has the 75 feet between



                19    neighbors so that the variance along that side



                20    could be much easier to buffer and have less



                21    impact on the site than a variance into the



                22    critical area, which we don't -- you know, we



                23    don't feel that we are allowed to approve impact



                24    within the critical zone.



                25                  MR. FARABEE:  So how did you
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                 1    compromise your design criteria and functionality



                 2    in order to get within the setbacks, how did you



                 3    consider that?



                 4                  MS. HAYES:  Those words are not my



                 5    words.



                 6                  MR. FARABEE:  I understand, but the



                 7    owner said they are the ARB's words.



                 8                  MS. O'LEARY:  Right.  And the owner



                 9    is welcome to answer that question through his



                10    representative.  I'm not able to do so.



                11                  MR. FARABEE:  Okay.  But what



                12    you're telling me is you're maintaining your



                13    design criteria and functionality, and we've got



                14    to give up our variance standards so you can meet



                15    your standards; is that what you're saying with



                16    this house?



                17                  MS. HAYES:  That is not what I am



                18    saying, no.  I am saying that the ARB approved



                19    this setback variance, and I'm here to support



                20    it.  I believe that the unique conditions of this



                21    site warrant a small amount of setback variance



                22    for the property.



                23                  MS. O'LEARY:  But, in essence, you



                24    are giving and taking because of a comment that



                25    you had said that there is 75 feet between this
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                 1    house and the next house with the leisure trail



                 2    in between, so it's okay to ask for that variance



                 3    on the side of the house; but you're more worried



                 4    about the critical line instead of trying to



                 5    actually fit the home into a different -- I mean,



                 6    it said on response I that -- want to make sure I



                 7    say this correctly -- "the ordinance due to the



                 8    shifting of this home into the side setback to



                 9    allow for a better design and functionality of a



                10    very difficult lot to put a desirable home on."



                11    So maybe instead of looking at building a



                12    desirable home, if we had looked at building



                13    within the appropriate lot lines because it's



                14    like your robbing Peter to pay Paul.



                15                  MS. HAYES:  Well, I don't know that



                16    I can agree with that statement.  I think the ARB



                17    is very judicious and looks for extraordinary



                18    circumstances when it is considering setback



                19    variances, and the critical line encroachment and



                20    the pie-shaped nature of the lot we believe



                21    warrant setback variances on this property.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.



                23             Other questions?



                24             Yes, ma'am.



                25                  MS. LEIMAN:  Good afternoon.  My
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                 1    name is Andrea Leiman.  My husband and I reside



                 2    at -- full-time at 128 Blue Heron Pond Road,



                 3    directly across the street from this lot.  My



                 4    family began vacationing on Kiawah in the 1980's.



                 5    We spent summers exploring the island, imagining



                 6    where we might want to live one day.  As The



                 7    Preserve was developed and with the effort to



                 8    maintain respect for the natural beauty of the



                 9    island, this neighborhood was an irresistible



                10    choice in our future planning.



                11             So in 2015 we purchased a lot which does



                12    back onto the marsh of Blue Heron Pond.  It had



                13    limitations to the size and shape of the house.



                14    In our purchase contract we had 30 days to see if



                15    we could design a home we wanted within the



                16    constraints of the size, shape and location of



                17    the lot.  We worked with an architect to design



                18    such a home which required some size and design



                19    adjustments in order to conform to the



                20    development rules.  It never would have occurred



                21    to us to try to change the rules to accommodate



                22    what we might want to build because, by



                23    definition, the variance would have negatively



                24    impacted the natural surroundings, that is, it



                25    would have impinged on the marshland and their
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                 1    natural coverage of the lot.



                 2             We have lived across the street from 129



                 3    for over seven years, assuming it would never be



                 4    developed, given its size, shape, water coverage



                 5    and location adjacent to the nature trail.  The



                 6    trail on the other side of the road has



                 7    KICA-owned buffer land at the entrance which adds



                 8    to the beauty and overall appeal.  Thus, we all



                 9    have anticipated that KICA would protect the



                10    entrance to this trail.  These trails are used



                11    continuously by residents and visitors alike.  In



                12    fact, KICA is now working on enhancing this trail



                13    right next to Lot 129, as it is used so



                14    frequently and enjoyed by so many.  We had



                15    naturally expected the area to be left untouched,



                16    so we were stunned in 2021 to find that the lot



                17    was actually purchased.



                18             The limitations of building on this lot



                19    are not hidden.  Professional investors purchased



                20    this lot in 2021 and then more in 2025 last



                21    month, and they knew or should have known the



                22    risks inherent in developing such a ridiculous



                23    lot.  Instead of being respectful of the



                24    neighborhood and the natural beauty of The



                25    Preserve, they are trying to enlarge the size of

�

                                                                      61







                 1    the home, clearly in order to maximize the profit



                 2    from the purchase of this lot.



                 3             It is disturbing that the present



                 4    owners, GSB Holdings, paid $1 million for this



                 5    lot last month.  This is four times what it was



                 6    sold for three years ago -- or four years ago.



                 7    The piece of -- the price of a larger lot on the



                 8    same side of Blue Heron Pond Road sold a couple



                 9    months ago, which is larger and more conforming,



                10    and that sold for $600,000.



                11             The covenants of The Preserve state that



                12    building coverage is supposed to be no more than



                13    actually 30 percent of the lot.  The developers



                14    of this lot are requesting a variance for lot



                15    coverage of almost 34 percent.  This is totally



                16    unacceptable.



                17             It is vital to note that the developers



                18    are already marketing, as somebody mentioned, a



                19    house online prior to receiving this variance



                20    with a price tag of $5.2 million.  The home



                21    description on the website includes a pool and



                22    claims it has great views of Blue Heron Pond.



                23    The house, in fact, is across the street from



                24    Blue Heron Pond.  It is in fact --



                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  You're over the three
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                 1    minutes.  I'd ask you to wrap up.



                 2                  MS. LEIMAN:  Okay.  Just a minute.



                 3             So it's on the back of Killdeer Pond.



                 4    Just because you want something doesn't mean you



                 5    should have it.  The developers knew full well



                 6    the limitations of this lot.  Their cavalier



                 7    attitude toward the neighborhood are shocking,



                 8    and stating that, quote, encroaching the side



                 9    setback is only visible from the Kiawah Island



                10    trail reflects their callous and dismissive



                11    attitude towards The Preserve and all of us who



                12    live there and use it.  Denying the extreme



                13    negative impact by building out on the back and



                14    side of this lot is misrepresentative and



                15    disrespectful.  I respectfully request you deny



                16    any variance of this lot.



                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.



                18    Appreciate it.



                19             Other comments from the public?



                20             Yes, sir.  Please go to the podium.



                21                  MR. BRODY:  Hi, I'm Steven Brody.



                22    My wife and I live at 140 Blue Heron Pond Road.



                23    Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak.



                24             When my house at 140 was designed and



                25    approved by Mr. Lorenzo and Ms. Hayes, I was
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                 1    specifically told that my lot coverage couldn't



                 2    be more than 30 percent.  I'm not quite sure



                 3    where 33 or 34 percent came from now, but I made



                 4    sure my house, on the advice of the Camens firm,



                 5    was firmly at 30 percent.  Also, my garage is a



                 6    front-loading garage, which is not really within



                 7    the design guidelines of The Preserve, but in



                 8    order to make our house fit on our lot, we were



                 9    given permission to have a front-loaded garage



                10    because of constraints of our lot which weren't



                11    even on our plat or site plan.  They were



                12    actually conditions that were imposed after we



                13    purchased the lot.  So I think the idea of not



                14    having a front-loading garage is a specious



                15    argument.  I don't think it's really true.



                16             The other thing that I would point out,



                17    in the September 2016 Preserve Design Guidelines,



                18    Section 3 specifically states that the lot



                19    coverage in The Preserve is 30 percent, not 34



                20    percent.



                21             I also would point out that this lot



                22    is -- probably never should have been a lot.  I



                23    think it's a lot only because the original



                24    developers, probably due to maybe their



                25    insatiable greed, took any piece of land they
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                 1    could get and were going to shove a house on



                 2    there.  This lot is a very unusual shape.  It's a



                 3    very undesirable lot, and the truth is just



                 4    because you want to put a four-bedroom, 4,000



                 5    square foot house on it so you can sell it for $5



                 6    million clearly shows that somebody's trying to



                 7    create an undue profit from this property.



                 8             Regarding Section C of the variance



                 9    request, it is only a hardship if you want to



                10    build an inappropriate house on a poorly situated



                11    lot.  The lot does not support the design of



                12    Mr. Camens and Mr. Lorenzo.  Thank you.



                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, sir.



                14             Yes, sir.



                15                  MR. HEALY:  Good afternoon.  My



                16    name is Joseph Healy.  I live at the end, 152



                17    Blue Heron Pond Road.  I really just want to



                18    comment on three things regarding the criteria.



                19    One, the uniqueness of their property.  Well, we



                20    have a very thin piece of property with a pond



                21    behind us and a cul-de-sac, and we -- like all



                22    architects, it's a balancing act, and we kind of



                23    had to contort to get the house we wanted.  But



                24    in the end, we had to comply with the ARB and we



                25    had to comply with the town rules; so we had no
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                 1    exceptions, and the ARB actually, you know, gave



                 2    us a couple nos on a couple things we wanted to



                 3    do.



                 4             I also want to touch on F.  This is a



                 5    professional investor.  How can you say there's



                 6    no profit motive here?  The bigger the house you



                 7    have, the more money you make.  That's just very



                 8    simple.



                 9             And the last thing is on H, which is



                10    that there's no neighboring home for the leisure



                11    trail.  The trails are actually one of the most



                12    attractive elements of The Preserve.  I mean,



                13    Kiawah Real Estate highlights that.



                14             So my wife and I -- in fact, I think



                15    Mr. Farabee was over there inspecting the other



                16    day as we were just finishing a walk.  Those are



                17    beautiful trails and, you know, if you bump up



                18    right against it, in my opinion, you are taking a



                19    very attractive resource and diminishing it.



                20    Now, can you quantify that?  No.  But to me you



                21    have a sacred duty to try as best you can to



                22    respect the rules that we all agree to live under



                23    when we signed our contracts.  So thank you for



                24    the opportunity to speak.



                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, sir.
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                 1             Any other comments?



                 2             Yes, ma'am.



                 3                  MS. HAYES:  I don't want to belabor



                 4    anything, but I did just want to clarify a few



                 5    items that have come up.  The first, regarding



                 6    lot coverage, the covenants and restrictions for



                 7    The Preserve say that maximum lot coverage is



                 8    approximately 30 percent.  The ARB has been



                 9    consistent in applying 33 percent .0 maximum lot



                10    coverage for all properties that are over 12,000



                11    square feet, so this one is not a variance in



                12    terms of lot coverage.



                13             In addition, I would also say that the



                14    ARB looks very carefully at -- again, at



                15    variances and impact on neighborhoods and the



                16    greater community and, you know, I would maintain



                17    that the variance request that is being proposed



                18    here will not have a perceivable impact on the



                19    leisure trail and homeowners' use of it.  Our



                20    approval for planting between the actual trail



                21    location and the side of the home is for a



                22    multilayered and dense buffer so that the house



                23    is embedded within vegetation and the trail can



                24    continue to be enjoyed by owners.  Thank you.



                25                  MS. O'LEARY:  Can I just ask a
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                 1    quick question?



                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.



                 3                  MS. O'LEARY:  I thought you had



                 4    said that you approve up to 33 percent for lot



                 5    coverage, correct?  Because it's approximately



                 6    30, you know.  Okay.  So I don't want to be a



                 7    nitpicker, but this is 33.99, so essentially we



                 8    are over even what you've allowed for.



                 9                  MS. HAYES:  Yes, I'm glad you



                10    asked, and the answer to that question is, no,



                11    they are not over what is allowed for.  Could the



                12    table have been more clearly labeled for clarity?



                13    Possibly.  So 33.0 percent is the maximum allowed



                14    for primary lot coverage, which is all required



                15    elements plus structure, okay.  And then Town and



                16    ARB allow for secondary lot coverage, which is



                17    pervious nonrequired elements, which is what they



                18    are including, which gives you then the total lot



                19    coverage.



                20                  MS. O'LEARY:  Okay.



                21                  MS. HAYES:  Yes.



                22                  MS. O'LEARY:  I see what you're



                23    saying.



                24                  MS. HAYES:  So you could have a



                25    total lot coverage, actually, of 39.67, given
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                 1    everyone's current guidelines and ordinances.



                 2                  MS. O'LEARY:  I just go back to



                 3    this is such, such a small lot that you're



                 4    putting this big house on that -- anyway, we've



                 5    all discussed it.  Done.



                 6                  MR. CASSIDY:  Mr. Lorenzo, did you



                 7    want to make any further constituents?



                 8                  MR. LORENZO:  No, sir.



                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  All right.  That's



                10    it.



                11                  MR. LEWIS:  I have a question for



                12    either staff or maybe even legal.  How do the



                13    covenants and restrictions for The Preserve



                14    relate to what we look at?  They don't supersede.



                15                  MR. MCQUILLAN:  They don't



                16    supersede, so the covenants and restrictions can



                17    be stricter than what the Town requires, but they



                18    can't be looser than what the Town requires.



                19                  MR. LEWIS:  It's for our



                20    consideration.



                21                  MR. MCQUILLAN:  Yes.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  With that I'll



                23    entertain any motions that anyone would like to



                24    make.



                25                  MR. HANAN:  I'd like to make a
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                 1    motion it be denied.



                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Morris, could I ask



                 3    you to specify which criteria?



                 4                  MR. HANAN:  First of all, by H,



                 5    because there's definitely a concern it's



                 6    contrary to public and neighborhood interest.



                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  Is there a second?



                 8                  MS. O'LEARY:  Second.



                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Seconded by Lin.



                10    Further discussion?



                11                  MR. FARABEE:  I'd like to just



                12    comment that, walking that trail, which is a



                13    leisure trail, which is a very nice trail, I



                14    agree with some of the comments here.  That house



                15    would be so close to that trail it would look



                16    like walking through an alley, not walking



                17    through a leisure trail.  And the house on the



                18    other side of the trail is quite a bit of



                19    distance from the trail, and I think it would



                20    look really funny and destroy the trail.



                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other comments?



                22             All right.  If not, we'll vote then.  An



                23    aye vote is to deny the variance request.



                24             Ben?



                25                  MR. FARABEE:  Aye.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Jay?



                 2                  MR. LEWIS:  Aye.



                 3                  MR. CASSIDY:  Morris?



                 4                  MR. HANAN:  Aye.



                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Lin?



                 6                  MS. O'LEARY:  Aye.



                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  And Frank, aye.



                 8             So it's unanimous.  The request for the



                 9    variance is denied, primarily because of Criteria



                10    H, the neighborhood interest.



                11             Okay.  With that we are done with



                12    variance requests today.  We have one further



                13    thing on our agenda today, and that's our annual



                14    review of our rules and procedure.  I note that



                15    we did a pretty extensive review of these rules



                16    last year, so I don't have any comments or



                17    changes to suggest.  Does anyone want to talk



                18    about any of that?



                19                  MR. FARABEE:  I do.



                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, sir, Ben.



                21                  MR. FARABEE:  I do this every time



                22    we review this, so with regard to the membership,



                23    I think the five residents and two nonresidents



                24    is a throwback to the time when there weren't



                25    many residents here, and I think that we should
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                 1    have seven residents on this committee that



                 2    are -- meet the criteria (inaudible).



                 3             When I owned my property -- I bought my



                 4    property eight years before we started building



                 5    here, and whether it was right or not, I had



                 6    little thought to what the hell was going on



                 7    here.  I had my property, and I was happy with



                 8    that, and I wasn't interested in the day-to-day



                 9    kind of activity like I am now.



                10             As a full-time resident, I believe



                11    people are more interested in what's going on and



                12    being more participated, they can view the lots



                13    as we do when we go and consider these variances,



                14    and I just think that a full-time resident can



                15    make a better decision than a part-time resident.



                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Is there support for



                17    that point?



                18             Go ahead, Dan.



                19                  MR. VINCENT:  Mr. Farabee, sorry to



                20    interrupt, but it does say at least five of the



                21    members shall be residents, but then again lower



                22    it says the BZA may consist of as many as two



                23    residents; so there can be as many as two but



                24    there may not be any that are --



                25                  MR. FARABEE:  I don't think there
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                 1    should be any so it shouldn't be may.



                 2                  MR. LEWIS:  I would just offer my



                 3    personal -- I'm not here -- I'm here right at six



                 4    months, if that, having four kids in three other



                 5    states, none of which is South Carolina.  I



                 6    travel quite a bit, so I make every effort to be



                 7    here but --



                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  Do you vote here,



                 9    Jay?



                10                  MR. LEWIS:  No, I do not.  That's a



                11    tax question at this point.  But very soon.  I'm



                12    down to my last kid.  Once I get them off the



                13    payroll, then yes.



                14                  MS. O'LEARY:  They're never off the



                15    payroll.



                16                  (Overlapping dialogue.)



                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  I appreciate Ben's



                18    point here.  I can picture, though, a property



                19    owner that, where this is their main secondary



                20    residence and I think who would have just as much



                21    desire to keep track of the way things are going



                22    here as a resident would, but I understand the



                23    point.  We can certainly vote to change if others



                24    agree with this.



                25                  MS. O'LEARY:  It's like a
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                 1    double-edged sword.  I agree with what you say,



                 2    some part-time owners have as much of an



                 3    investment as a full-time owner, and Jay's a



                 4    perfect example of that, but it says may.  We



                 5    don't have to have that, you know, I guess.



                 6                  (Overlapping dialogue.)



                 7                  MR. HANAN:  It's loose enough the



                 8    way it is.



                 9                  MS. O'LEARY:  It's loose enough,



                10    but the majority of us are full-time.



                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  I think everybody



                12    here, possibly, with the exception of Jay.



                13                  MR. LEWIS:  It's nothing personal,



                14    just my situation.



                15                  MR. CASSIDY:  Shall we leave it for



                16    the moment?



                17                  MR. FARABEE:  Pardon me?



                18                  MR. CASSIDY:  Are you okay with



                19    leaving it as it is?



                20                  MR. FARABEE:  Well, you're going to



                21    outvote me.



                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Looks like it.



                23                  MR. FARABEE:  I'm just saying, I



                24    voiced it last time and the time before and the



                25    time before.  I feel strongly about it, and I
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                 1    will voice it again next year.



                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Fair enough.



                 3                  MS. O'LEARY:  Can I just ask a



                 4    quick question?  Where do we stand with the other



                 5    two members?



                 6                  MR. TAYLOR:  So our last two



                 7    members who are not present at this meeting,



                 8    they, as you you-all may be aware, I shared a



                 9    communication that they were not reappointed, as



                10    we wanted to advertise those positions to the



                11    community.  We have advertised those positions to



                12    the community.  Have not gotten any additional



                13    interest, so we anticipate that they will be



                14    returning, and it's slated for the March Town



                15    Council agenda for reappointments.



                16                  MS. O'LEARY:  And do we have March



                17    schedules?  Do we have applications?



                18                  MR. VINCENT:  We have one, yes.



                19                  MR. TAYLOR:  One case for next



                20    month.



                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  So there will be a



                22    March meeting and Phil and Larry will be back



                23    with us at that time.



                24                  MR. LEWIS:  Has the schedule for



                25    the rest of the year been published?
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes.  I have it here,



                 2    Jay.



                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  I think we probably



                 4    created a hard copy for you-all last meeting.  We



                 5    can re-share the full schedule out so you have



                 6    it.



                 7                  MR. LEWIS:  I apologize.  I didn't



                 8    see that.



                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Anything else



                10    before we adjourn?



                11             All right.  Thank you all very much.



                12                  (Overlapping dialogue.)



                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  We need a motion to



                14    adjourn.



                15                  MS. O'LEARY:  Motion to adjourn.



                16                  MR. HANAN:  Second.



                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  All in favor?



                18                  (All indicate in the affirmative.)



                19                  (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)



                20                          - - -



                21



                22



                23



                24



                25
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